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80,750,000
IMPACTING 

THE LIVES OF

CONSUMERS EVERYDAY IN VIETNAM

Enhancing the core values and applying the new strategic approach for growth. With the 
strong understanding of the market and customer’s needs, the customization of 
diversi�ed product portfolio drives KIDO Group to achieve higher growth. 

Being STEADY from
our STRONG PLATFORM

PLATFORM

PEOPLE

PRODUCT

Chapter 1: Introduction
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INTRODUCTION

Dear Shareholders, 

The transformation of KIDO Group from confectionery to 
the daily essential food category has achieved remarkable 
results. The robust growth in both revenue and profits in 
2017 is proved to be a breakthrough and has affirmed 
the capability, value reputation and strategic vision of 
KIDO Group in the consumer market. 2017 was a turning 
point for the Group and witnessed positive changes 
in the integration of the different business units into 
KIDO Group. This process was extremely successfully 
thanks to strong efforts of everyone and support of the 
shareholders, investors, consumers and partners.  

Frozen Foods Segment

The Bac Ninh Factory was completed and put into 
operation which has helped KIDO Foods to expand its 
production capability and penetrate into the northern 
market. This was considered a strategic step to enhance 
the distribution system as well as to target the ambient 
and packaged foods market. By leveraging the wide 
distribution channel of 70,000 frozen and chilled point 
of sales, our frozen foods segment continued to expand 
into the ambient and chilled foods which has effectively 
supported us in the goal of dominating the Vietnamese 
household’s kitchen. 

The process of expanding categories and scaling is not 
easy. The act of maintaining the leading position and 
increasing market share for the ice segment to reach 
40.2% affirms our continuous efforts. KIDO Foods also 
celebrated a milestone in journey by going public 

TO REALIZE OUR GOAL OF BECOMING THE LEADING FOOD CORPORATION 
IN VIETNAM AND EXPANDING TO OTHER COUNTRIES, WE HAVE MANY 
CHALLENGES TO OVERCOME, AND WILL NEED THE COOPERATION, 
SUPPORT FROM OUR PARTNERS, SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTOMERS. 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

and listing its shares to be traded on the UPCOM. The 
underlying reason for taking KDF public was not only 
about diversifying the shareholder structure, attracting 
the strategic investors, domestic and international 
investment but also creating the opportunity for investors 
to have a variety of choices in directly investing in specific 
business of the Group. 

The ambition of KIDO Group is to be present in the ambient, 
chilled and frozen foods segment. Therefore, we acquired 
a 50% equity interests in DABACO Foods Processing Co., 
Ltd – a business unit which has production capability 
in processed foods. With the competitive advantage of 
3F (Feed, Farm, Food) and technology capacity of our 
partner; coupled with our wide distribution channel, 
marketing and financial resources of KIDO Group, we 
will maximize our competitive advantage position in 
the market and create the opportunity to expand our 
cooperation in this field. 

Daily Essential Segment

The year 2017 saw several outstanding changes for 
Tuong An as its profit grew by 98% versus 2016. This was 
a proud achievement for us which marked a very special 
occasion for the company which also celebrated its 40th 
anniversary. The symbol of the red elephant represents 
the persistent and robust life of our brand. This brand 
is characterized for high quality and has been a familiar 
presence with the Vietnamese household’s kitchens for 
many generations. The results of Tuong An are due to 
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INTRODUCTION

GROSS PROFIT

BILLION 
VND1,453

NET SALES 

BILLION 
VND7,016

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE (continued)

the team as well as KIDO Group who both persevered 
through the process of improving, enhancing the 
operational efficiency, restructuring the product 
categories and diversifying the product portfolio which 
was targeted at serving consumers high quality products 
as part of the family’s meals. Tuong An also focused on 
exploring cooperation activities with various partners to 
expand it’s position in the market. Thanks to the support 
from KIDO Group, Tuong An partnered with TTC to 
distribute refined sugar and other partners to distribute 
instant noodle. Moving forward, we will also expand to 
other essential foods such as sauces, spices, etc.  

Export, Industrial and Distribution Channels

KIDO Group completed to raise its stake at the Vietnam 
Vegetable Oils Industry Corporation – Joint Stock 
Company (VOC) from 24% to 51% in May 2017 and 
Vocarimex officially became a member of the Group. As 
a leading player in its field, VOC holds a crucial role in 
the value chain of the Group.  VOC is the key element in 
helping us conquer the essential foods market. With strong 
internal resources such as supply chain management, 
exporting and importing activities, warehousing and 
especially competitive advantages in industrial oils, VOC 
characterizes a strong platform for KIDO Group support 
other members in the Group. KIDO Group continues to 
support VOC in terms of restructuring the operational 
system improvements, planning and designing the 
business model to focus on industrial and export clients.  

From a single basket of goods toward  
a VND 250,000 Billion market 

Despite the increasing competition, daily essential food’s 
market size is expected to reach VND 250,000 billion 
in 2018. To realize our goal of becoming the leading 
food corporation in Vietnam and expanding to other 
countries, we have many challenges to overcome, and 
will need the cooperation, support from our partners, 
shareholders and customers.

The success of KIDO is the result of pursuing a strategy 
of connecting with consumers. Beside a strong financial 
position, product innovation ability and a strong 
execution platform, KIDO has always focused on the 
needs of consumers at the center of all activities. We 
consider the needs and taste of the Vietnamese consumer 
as the basis for our development. KIDO Group’s goal is to 
maximize our share of the consumer’s basket of goods by 
choosing and delivering high quality products that meet 
the need of consumers throughout the day. In addition, 
we are improving our distribution channel to ensure the 
delivery of our products to the consumers. Our Group’s 
priority is to work closely with the strategic partners 
to make sure that consumers will choose our quality 
products to achieve the highest level of satisfaction.

KDC – maximize value and ensure 
sustainable growth 

In the first phase, beside our mission to consumers, 
customers, communities and society, we have defined 
our mission to shareholders and investors by achieving 
maximum value for shareholders, and minimizing risks 
to create stability, confidence and consistent return on 
investments.

Our commitment has been realized over many years 
evident through our dividend policy. This continues to 
require KIDO Group to maintain its revenue growth rate, 
profitability and financial efficiency. Our subsidiaries have 
to focus on the most important issues to create value, 
ensure a balance between benefits and growth. We 
are committed to implementing all strategic activities 
effectively to provide shareholders, investors with 
consistent and stable dividends in the long-term.

Currently, with the participation of three subsidiaries listed 
on the stock exchange, KIDO has achieved scale in terms, 
production capacity, operations and management. There 
are still many challenges in the process of developing 
TAC, KDF and VOC with KIDO Group’s strategy. However, 
with our market knowledge, strong financial position, 
and managerial capabilities, KIDO will continue to 
support our member companies who are preparing for 
the next stage of development.  We will accelerate the 
process of expansion and penetration into other daily 

food categories through M&A activities, cooperation, 
joint ventures, and partnerships.

It is this that fuels my confidence in our strategic goal of 
becoming the best daily essential food group in Vietnam 
and we will be able to complete this faster than expected.

To our stakeholders, we are proud of the achievements 
over the past periods and I believe that the support of 
our shareholders is the key motivation for our Group. We 
are confident in executing our strategy and achieving 
strong growth rates during this transformation phase. On 
behalf of the Board of Directors, I express my gratitude 
to our shareholders, investors, consumers, partners and 
team for their continuous support of KIDO Group. 

We wish you a prosperous year, full of health and 
happiness and we hope that our cooperation will be 
fruitful and successful.

TRAN KIM THANH
Group Chairman
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MISSION

VISION

CONSUMERS 
To identify and produce affordable food, snacks, and beverages to meet daily 
needs of consumers. Our products are pioneering, market leading, healthy, 
satisfying and conveniently available to our consumers.

PARTNERS
To create sustainable value for supply chain partners through innovative 
food products that address consumer’s demand trends and exceed their 
expectations. We aim to provide equitable returns for all and contribute 
sustainable development.

PEOPLE
To nurture and develop the skills and capabilities of our people to meet the 
professional demands of their work and satisfy their personal needs. In this 
way we create a KIDO family that is home to dynamic, creative, and innovative 
people. KIDO aims to be the company that elevates an individual’s ambitions 
and professional skills, through a corporate culture based on teamwork and 
mutual enrichment.

COMMUNITY 
To contribute to the communities in which we operate through sponsorship 
programs and community development activities. We aim to be a leader of 
progress for Vietnamese society. Our impact is not only commercial but we 
also embrace social responsibility.

INVESTORS 
To allocate capital with the goal of maximizing shareholder value over the 
long-term and to manage risk in order to give certainty and confidence that 
investment in our business can achieve our shareholder’s goals.

MORE FLAVOR TO LIFE
CREATE LIFE’S FLAVORS THROUGH WHOLESOME, HEALTHY, AND 
NUTRITIOUS PRODUCTS AND BE THE MOST RECOGNIZED COMPANY IN 
VIETNAM AND SOUTH EAST ASIA BY ALL STAKEHOLDERS.

Edible Oils & Fats 

   Ice Cream

Yogurt 

   Frozen Foods

Other Products 

77.4 %

16.8 %

3.9 %

0.6 %

1.3 %

Business Unit % of Group revenue 2017

GROUP STRUCTURE VISION & MISSION
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KDC is an integrated food and beverage consumer company with 
concentration of products covering temperature ranges from short to long 
shelf life goods. Our vision is to deliver the best consumer experience in terms 
of nutrition, taste and choices. 

Our platform is designed to provide consumers with a full range of products 
ranging from frozen to ambient. 

Within our platform, we are aiming to serve 85% of Vietnamese consumers 
across the nation through 450,000 point of sales.

POINT OF SALES

POINTS
450,000

• Largest market share for ice 
cream in Vietnam (~40.2%)

• The two leading brands for 
ice cream: Merino & Celano

• Largest frozen, chilled 
and ambient distribution 
platform in Vietnam

• Second largest market share of 
edible oils in Vietnam (~16%)

• Wide distribution platform for 
packaged foods

• Single largest combined 
edible oils trading company in 
Vietnam

• Large logistics platform for 
edible oil import, storage and 
distribution

KIDO FROZEN FOODS JSC.  
(KDF) 65%

TUONG AN VEGETABLE OILS JSC.  
(TAC) 75.44%

VIETNAM VEGETABLE OILS 
INDUSTRY CORPORATION  

(VOCARIMEX) 51%

WHOLESALE OILFROZEN FOOD PACKAGED FOOD

OVERVIEW – WHO WE ARE
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Mr. Thanh co-founded the KIDO Group (formerly Kinh 
Do Corporation) and has been the key driver behind 
the development strategy; leading KIDO to becoming 
one of Vietnam’s largest food companies. He is a 
veteran entrepreneur with a lifetime of experience in 
management and business.

In addition to presiding over KIDO Group’s board,  
Mr. Thanh sits on various boards of other large Vietnamese 
corporations, helping to contribute to the growth and 
development in the private sector. 

Ms. Linh is one of the founders and is currently a Board 
member and a Group Vice President of KIDO Group. 

During the initial phase of establishing the Group, with 
extensive experience in Production Management, she 
helped the Company to overcome any challenges and 
expand the business on the larger scale in the market. 
Besides, she well-oversees supply chain management and 
has made substantial contributions in the development 
of KIDO Group by managing costs, ensuring quality and 
enhancing the Group’s competitive advantage. Specially, 
she has built up and developed a variety of departments 
in the Group’s value chain which importantly contributed 
towards the establishment of one of the largest food 
conglomerates in Vietnam.

Ms. Linh was the primary architect in deploying the ERP 
(Enterprise –Resource –Planning) system in KIDO Group 
which effectively increases the Group’s capability in 
making timely and accurate decision. In addition to her 
contribution at KDC, Ms. Linh is an experienced investor 
in areas such as education.

An experienced entrepreneur with a background in 
establishing and scaling profitable businesses, Mr. Nguyen 
co-founded KIDO Group (formerly Kinh Do Corporation). 
He has been instrumental in the development of the 
business and under his management; KIDO emerged as 
one of the most well-known brands in Vietnam with a 
broad portfolio of market leading products that are best 
in their categories. In addition, he has led KIDO Group’s 
M&A efforts helping to create the diverse portfolio of 
brands that forms KDC today. 

Mr. Nguyen is an active board director of the Vietnam 
Chamber Commerce and Industry (VCCI) and participates 
on the boards of several prominent companies in 
Vietnam.

Ms Xiem is a co-founder of KIDO Group and is current 
a Group Vice President. With more than 20 years of 
experiences in managing retail chains and franchising 
Kinh Do Bakery chain stores, she greatly contributed to 
the Company’s management and operation since the 
very first day.   

By being flexible, creative in the way of reaching and 
expanding in the retail market, she has helped to make 
the Company’s image closer to the consumers through 
the distribution of high quality, safe, and nutritious 
product which is suitable for modern consumer trend.  

With her experience and hands-on approach, she 
has been a key part of the management team and 
contributed largely to the development of the Company.

MR. TRAN KIM THANH
Founder, Group Chairman

MR. TRAN LE NGUYEN
Co-Founder, Vice Chairman & Group CEO

MS. VUONG BUU LINH
Co-Founder, Board Director & Group Vice President

MS. VUONG NGOC XIEM
Co-Founder, Board Director & Group Vice President

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Wang has over 24 years of experience in the food 
manufacturing and processing industry and is one 
of the original founders who helped set up KIDO’s 
manufacturing operations. 

He has since helped to develop the scale of KIDO’s 
manufacturing footprint in Vietnam and currently is a 
Group Vice President.

Mr. Chuong is an independent 
Board of Director at KIDO since 
2013. He holds a Master of Law 
degree in International Trade Laws 
from Bristol Law School (University 
of the West of England – UW , the 
United Kingdom). Mr. Chuong is 
the co-founder cum Managing 
Partner of Phuoc & Partners law firm. 
With nearly 20 years of extensive 
experience in business law practice, 
Chuong has extensive expertise 
advising multinational companies 
and corporations in Vietnam in cross-
border and international transactions 
in various sectors. Chuong has been 
recognized as a leading lawyer in 
Vietnam by various international 
publications such as IFLR1000, Asian 
Legal Business (ALB), Legal 500 Asia 
Pacific, Asialaw Profiles…

Mr. Nguyen has over 20 years of experience managing 
various companies within KIDO Group and is currently 
a Board Director and Group Vice President. He has held 
various senior management positions throughout the 
Group and is currently the CEO of KIDO Frozen Food. 
In this role, he has been critical to its expansion and 
development of the frozen food business. Mr. Nguyen 
was instrumental in the expansion of the product 
portfolio from ice cream to include frozen foods, the 
expansion of the distribution network to become the 
number one frozen network in Vietnam and the driver in 
creating two of Vietnam’s largest ice cream brands.

Mr. Thuan is an independent 
Board of Director at KIDO. He has 
a Doctorate in Economics and is 
currently the Dean of Taxation - 
Customs department at University 
of Finance - Marketing. He has over 
32 years of experience as a lecturer 
in the field of banking and finance. 
Besides his academic work at Ho 
Chi Minh Open University, he is also 
a financial consultant and advisor 
for many companies and foreign 
organizations operating in Vietnam.

Mr. Tri has been an independent 
member of Board of Directors of KIDO 
since 2013. He holds a PhD degree 
in Business Administration from 
Nanyang Technological University 
– Singapore. He started his career 
in a sugar company under the 
Agricultural Ministry and taught at 
Touro University International, the 
then Trident University International 
(California, USA); Faculty of Economics 
– Rissho University (Tokyo, Japan); 
University of Economics Ho Chi 
Minh City and other joint programs 
in Vietnam. He has appointed as 
Associate Professor at Stenden 
University of Applied Sciences, the 
then NHL Stenden University of 
Applied Sciences, the Netherlands 
since September 1st, 2016.  

MR. TRAN QUOC NGUYEN
Board Director, Group Vice President & 

CEO of KIDO Frozen Food

MR. NGUYEN GIA HUY CHUONG
Board Director

MR. NGUYEN VAN THUAN
Board Director

MR. NGUYEN DUC TRI
Board Director

MR. WANG CHING HUA
Co-Founder, Board Director & Group Vice President

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
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Mr. Hien has more than 17 years of experience in finance, 
management, and financial transactions. He spent 13 
years at KIDO between 1999 - 2011 during which he was 
involved in financial management, investor relations, 
and various M&A transactions and restructuring projects. 
In addition to his role in the Supervisory Board of KIDO, 
Mr. Hien sits on the boards of several investment funds 
and companies such as VEOF Fund, Savico, and Tafoco.

Mr. Hien is a graduate of Foreign Trade University and 
holds an MBA from Washington State University.

Mr. Nguyen holds a Bachelor of Economics with a 
specialization in Business Administration. He had a Fund 
Manager certification issued by the State Securities 
Commission of Vietnam. He was one of first brokers of 
the OTC market in Vietnam and has over 19 years of 
investment and finance experience.

Ms. Duyen has worked with KIDO since 1993 and has 
held several key positions, including Accountant, Deputy 
Manager of the Accounting Department and Chief 
Accountant at KIDO. Since 2006, Ms. Duyen has been 
the Chief Accountant at KIDO Real Estate Joint Stock 
Company.

She holds a degree in Finance and Accounting.

MR. LUONG QUANG HIEN
Head of Supervisory Board

MS. LUONG MY DUYEN
Supervisory Board Member

MR. VO LONG NGUYEN
Supervisory Board Member

SUPERVISORY BOARD



Annual Report 2017
KIDO GROUP

20

21

INTRODUCTION

Mr. Wong has been with the KIDO Group since 2011 and 
has held the post of Group CFO; managing the Group’s 
finance, accounting and investment activities. He has 
lived and worked in Vietnam for over last ten years in 
various finance roles.

Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s of Commerce degree from 
the University of British Columbia in Vancouver, Canada 
and a Diploma in Asia Pacific Management from the 
McRae Institute of Management at Capilano University.

Ms. Hanh is a Group Vice President, Chairwoman of 
Tuong An Vegetable Oil JSC. She has over 16 years of 
experiences in the retail industry and business operations. 
Prior to joining KDC, Ms. Hanh’s experiences ranged from 
roles as General Director at Saigon-Coop, Chairwoman 
of the Board of Directors of SCID, Member of the Board 
of Directors of Saigon Co-op FairPrice LLC, and Saigon  
Co-op Mapletree LLC.

Through her various roles, Ms. Hanh has gained a wealth 
of experience and reputation as a founding figure in the 
Vietnamese retailing industry. Ms. Hanh was granted with 
Second-class Labor Medal, Vietnam’s Entrereneurship 
Award and “Bong Hong Vang” Award.

Ms Lieu has been with KIDO Group since 2014 and 
currently is Group Vice President, Board Member of TAC, 
General Director of Vietnam Vegetable Oils Industry 
Corporation (Vocarimex) and a Group Vice President of 
KIDO Group. She has over 30 years of working experience 
in Finance and Banking sector and more than 21 years in 
senior positions in Credit Management, Financial Banking 
at Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry  
and Trade. 

Ms. Lieu graduated with honors from the University 
of Economics Ho Chi Minh City and has successfully 
completed Doctoral studies at the school. Furthermore, 
she was honoured with the Certificate of Merit from the 
Prime Minister, other Ministries, Vietnam Entrepreneurship 
Award and the Labour Medal of the President.

Mr. Danh has been with KIDO Group since the initial 
phase of establishment. He was appointed Group Vice 
President in 2013. He oversees risk management and the 
internal control functions for the Group. He has over 10 
years of experience in financial management, business 
strategy, brand management consultancy and advisory 
in mergers and acquisitions, and BigData.

He holds a Bachelor’s of Science in Electrical Engineering, 
a Degree in Business Administration from the University 
of Economics, and a Masters of Business Administration 
with a focus in International Business Strategy and Brand 
Management from Belgium. He’s also Chairman of CIB 
Consulting and Investment.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

MR. KELLY WONG
Group CFO & Group Vice President

MS. NGUYEN THI XUAN LIEU
Group Vice President & General Director Vocarimex

MS. NGUYEN THI HANH
Group Vice President & 

Chairwoman of Tuong An Vegetable Oil JSC

MR. MA THANH DANH
Group Vice President



In the upcoming years, KIDO Group continues to develop new product categories and 
customize the �avors for consumers from di�erent areas. We target to serve not only 
consumers in the local area but also Southeast Asia. 

“More Flavor To Life”
More creating to work,

Chapter 2: Strategic Report
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STRATEGIC REPORT

2012 2013 2014 2015 2017

+376 %

+181 %

2016

%

Source: CAPITAL IQ
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KDC VN-Index

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

TSR provides a market-related measure of the Group’s progress against our 
objective of delivering long-term value for our shareholders. TSR measures the 
total return to KDC’s shareholders, including both share price appreciation and 
dividends paid.

DIVIDEND-ADJUSTED SHARE PRICING INDEX (2012 = 100%)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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Dear Shareholders, 

I am so pleased to take this moment to report 
on the business performance of KIDO Group. 

As our Chairman has laid out, we are embarking 
on a new phase of our development and we 
are all excited to take part in this. Over the past 
year, our executive team had an exciting year as 
we were able to focus on growth under a single 
operational platform formed by the successful 
integration of our various acquisitions.

At the end of 2017, this was characterized 
by a significant increase of 213.4% in the 
consolidated net revenue that reached VND 
7,016 billion. We also saw EBITDA of VND 231 
billion and Profit before tax (“PBT”) of VND 561 
billion. 

Our Group’s business today extends further 
beyond a single product or category. Our 
strategy has always been to be part of the 
Vietnamese consumer’s daily life. Our first step 
was to build a strong distribution platform 
with broad capability, anchored by two of our 
market leading companies (edible oils and ice 
cream) to penetrate the market. Regarding 

AT THE END OF 2017, THIS WAS CHARACTERIZED BY A 
SIGNIFICANT INCREASE OF 213.4% IN THE CONSOLIDATED 
NET REVENUE THAT REACHED VND 7,016 BILLION. WE ALSO 
SAW EBITDA OF VND 231 BILLION AND PROFIT BEFORE TAX 
(“PBT”) OF VND 561 BILLION.

edible oils, this include both our consumer 
business and our wholesale business. Our 
consumer edible oil business involved Tuong 
An Vegetable Oil JSC (TAC) who just celebrated 
its 40th anniversary of establishment. After a 
year cooperating with KDC, we have made 
great progress with the company and have 
seen net revenue grow by 9.0% from VND 3,978 
billion to VND 4,338 billion and Profit Before Tax 
increased by 98.2% from VND 84 billion to VND 
166 billion. 

The frozen foods segment is anchored by  
KIDO Frozen Foods Joint Stock Company 
(KDF). KDF gained market share in the ice 
cream segment rising from 38.1% to 40.2% and 
maintained our leading position in the Vietnam 
market. Ice cream rate was 15.7% year on year 
which outperformed the industry growth 
(14.7%), driven by strong premiumisation and 
continued conversion of our rural markets. 
Product innovation continued in order to keep 
consumers engaged with our popular brands, 
Merino and Celano. This starting point has 
opened a new opportunity for KDF to move 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S LETTER
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towards the larger dessert segment. Furthermore, in the frozen food segment, 
we started from a small base with dumpling and continue to test the frozen 
food with several new products including french fries, processed meats, 
sausage and fish balls. In the yoghurt segment, we had a decline of 22.9% in 
terms of net sales. This was largely affected by the decline in the frozen yogurt 
sachets which we launched the year before. The underlying reason for the 
reduction was mainly due to fierce competition of the product in the market. 
We are looking at innovating new products and extending our product 
presence in the frozen yogurt space to diversify any potential risk, and capture 
more growth. Despite this, edible yogurt was stable with approximately VND 
113 billion in 2017.

Looking towards 2018, we are very excited. Our distribution platform is 
completely integrated and well positioned thanks to a year of hard work 
in restructuring and building up the platform. We have also been running 
product development initiatives over the last year and obtained a ready and 
full pipeline of products that we are ready to launch to the market in 2018. 
This year will be characterized by new product launches which will help us 
to test out what are the right products for each of our customer territories 

and channels. This is in line with our goal of identifying the right “customer 
experience” with our current and upcoming products. Essentially, the act of 
delivering the right product at the right price, in the right place, at the right 
time, and in the right format is the key determinant to distinguish us from our 
competitors. The success of these launches will help propel the growth of 
KDC in the coming years and also support our strategy of creating a basket of 
goods to fulfill the consumer experience.

I want to once again thank you for another year of trust, support and 
commitment. I want to especially thank our stakeholders, including the 
consumer of our products, our business partners, our dedicated team and our 
valuable investors for their unwavering support of our Group. This support 
has emboldened us with confidence to continue to follow our strategy to 
become the leading consumer food conglomerate in Vietnam. 

TRAN LE NGUYEN
Group Chief Executive Officer

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 

BILLION 
VND 561

ICE CREAM

MARKET SHARE
40.2%

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S LETTER (continued)
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The Vietnamese economy in 2017 created a stable 
operating environment for consumer companies. 

Both the economy expanded by 6.81% versus 2016 and 
inflation was stable at around 3.53%. Interest rates and 
foreign exchange fluctuated within the year but the 
volatility from previous years was gone. One factor that 
did affect most consumer companies in Vietnam was the 
weather. We saw an abnormal amount of poor weather 
which negatively affected consumer demand in the 
middle of Vietnam. Despite this optimism and consumer 
confidence were higher, with disposable income 
accelerating against a low inflation environment which 
means spending could arguably increase.

However the year of 2017 still faced certain difficulties 
and challenges. For example Vietnam’s agriculture 
sector suffered unfavourable weather conditions that 
negatively affected production activity and as a result 
people’s livelihoods. There was also the increase in 
minimum labour wage by approximately 7.0% to 7.5% 
which impacted productions costs. There continued 
to be ongoing challenges in government restructuring 
of the markets, disbursements of public investments, 
environmental issues and food safety concerns which 
affected confidence levels. 

Despite this, we continue to be positive in our view of the 
Vietnamese economy. GDP is expected to continue to 
rise by around 6.7% in 2018. CPI is expected to accelerate 
but only slightly to 4.3% year on year in 2018 and the VND 
is expected to decline by 2% due to normal pressures. 
Against this backdrop we have had steady credit growth 

IN TERMS OF THE EDIBLE OIL MARKETS, THE SECTOR 
POSTED A GROWTH OF 6% TO REACH APPROXIMATELY 
VND 29,000 BILLION. WITHIN OILS AND FATS, THE VEGETABLE 
AND SEED OIL REMAINED THE BIGGEST CATEGORY, 
ACCOUNTING FOR OVER 90% OF THE OIL AND FATS CATEGORY.

which has helped to leverage corporate earnings and as 
a result the stock market. 

Our companies operates in the fast moving consumer 
goods sector - a sector that is subject to an array of 
different global pressure. Within Vietnam, we identify 
two key forces that shape the landscape of our 
businesses. Rapid economic development has led to 
the emergence of a new consumer class, particularly in 
major urban centers, which has an interest in and can 
afford to participate in modern consumption. This rise in 
purchasing power has triggered an increase in consumer 
spending, which we expect to become more pronounced 
over the next five years. In contrast to this, accelerating 
economic integration has sent an influx of foreign brands 
into Vietnam, intensifying competition particularly in the 
urban centers. The value growth of FMCG market in 2017 
witnessed a y-o-y growth of 5.3% which is higher than 
the increased rate of the previous years. Moreover, the 
Vietnam’s FMCG market is expected to growth stronger 
in 2018 to reach 6% to 7%, which represents a large and 
increasingly competitive landscape with the penetration 
of multinational companies.

Against this dynamic and evolving economic landscape, 
our businesses were shaped by a diverse set of dynamics. 
In terms of the edible oil markets, the sector posted a 
y-o-y growth of 6% to reach approximately VND 29,000 
billion. Within oils and fats, the vegetable and seed oil 
remained the biggest category, accounting for over 90% 
of the oil and fats category. We note that the trends for 
the industry are continued enhancing premiumisation 

OIL MARKETS

BILLION
VND 29,000 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REVIEW

and growing consciousness on health benefits of certain 
higher priced oils. We have seen significant development 
on this front even beyond the urban areas and reaching 
into the rural areas. This will continue to be a key driving 
force for us in the coming years in the edible oil category. 

Ice cream, yogurt and frozen food sector saw growth 
rates of 6.2% in 2017 with a market value of USD 800 
million. Higher income and rising urbanization are 
expected to drive consumption of indulgence (ice cream) 
but changes in consumer life style are changing the 
landscape of frozen foods. Notably, we can see shoppers 
going to the retailers less frequently but spending more 
per trip. This has resulted in a larger spend per trip over 
the last few years. The conclusion we are drawing here is 

that consumers are starting to store more products and 
shopping with lower frequency. Whereas the traditional 
Vietnamese went to the market once per day, we are 
seeing times extend to every 3 days or even a week. This 
is also a function of the changing retail landscape which 
has seen stronger growth in modern trade outlets.

We therefore see a lot of growth opportunity in frozen 
foods with this shift in consumer behavior. Our ice 
cream business will continue to be a strong anchor for 
the frozen foods business, but as consumer shopping 
patterns change, we feel frozen, chilled foods will be the 
next big group of products our customer “experience” 
that we need to develop.
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NET SALES 

Net revenue grew by more than double in 2017 compared to that in 2016, 
VND 7,016 billion vs VND 2,239 billion, respectively as a result of the consolidation 
of Vocarimex and TAC. Net revenue of KDF increased y-o-y by 6.9% to achieve 
around VND 1,493 billion. The ice cream segment grew by 15.7% which 
outperformed the overall industry growth of 14.7%. Yogurt declined by 22.9% 
due to the direct impact of lower frozen yogurt sales, declining from VND 355 
billion to VND 274 billion. KDF is counteracting this by increasing the range 
of frozen yogurt products with unique attributes to increase the price point. 
The goal is to make the overall portfolio more resilient to competition. Edible 
yogurt remained stable at VND 113 billion with no change year on year. The 
frozen foods segment continued to perform well with y-o-y growth rate of 
around 76.6% due to the launching of new product in steamed buns and frozen 
french fries. We continue to expect this segment to grow in the coming year 
as our strategy of increasing overall products into our existing channels comes 
to fruition. Net sales of TAC went up y-o-y by 9.0% to reach VND 4,338 billion 
due to the restructuration of the product portfolio which targeted the premium 
segment and the leverage of Group’s distribution channels. TAC is also seeing 
premiumisation of its products in the northern parts of the country where 
our presence is continuing to expand. Continuation of this trend should drive 
growth in 2018.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit of the KIDO Group increased from VND 872 billion to VND 1,453 
billion as a result of integrating TAC and Vocarimex. KDF gross profit increased 
by 1.8% from VND 783 billion in 2016 to VND 797 billion in 2017. There was a 
strong emphasis on growing the premium segment for KDF – Celano brand, 
but gains were offset by higher depreciation from the addition of the Bac Ninh 
facility in Hanoi. For TAC, gross margins expanded form 9.4% to 13.0%, resulting 
in a nominal increase in gross profit to VND 564 billion for 2017. This changes 
was due to the reorganization of the TAC portfolio and also increased focus on 
the premium segment.

OPERATING EXPENSE

In 2017, we spent a significant amount of time refining the processes and key 
work streams in creating a unified platform around our channel capabilities. We 
are now well positioned to deliver any product to our 450,000 general trade 
POS and 70,000 frozen and chilled POS between the temperatures minus 
10 degrees to more than 10 degrees. This is the single most comprehensive 

distribution platform in Vietnam and we believe that the future growth of 
KDC is predicated on ensuring that we have the ability to grow the size of 
the basket of goods versus individual categories. Expenses on a consolidated 
basis were VND 1,519 billion a change of 56.2% from the previous year. This 
was a result of consolidation from TAC and Vocarimex, but furthermore, 
we continued to invest into the distribution in both KDF and TAC in order 
to prepare for future growth. These expenses were offset by a reduction of 
VND 99 billion in savings that were a result of reducing redundancies in TAC 
and VOC after the integration.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

We manage our group debt structure strictly with limits of 0.3x Debt-Equity 
Ratio across the group. We currently have 2 main long term borrowings 
outstanding in the group. One of which is a VND 259 billion term loan at 
KDF taken out for the construction of the Bac Ninh factory. The second is a 
VND 594 billion bond issued by KDC that will mature in year 2021. Remaining 
debt is short-term in nature and used for working capital requirements by 
each of the operating entities.

The total equity in 2017 increased by 20.1% to reach around VND 7,817 billion 
due to growth in profitability. A dividend of VND1,600 was paid per shares in 
the month of August 2017.

CASH POSITION

Cash and cash equivalent increased from VND 1,683 billion to VND 1,808 
billion, representing a 7.4% increase compared to 2017. Group EBITDA was 
VND 231 billion which is an increase of 1,128.6% versus 2016. This is a direct 
result of the addition of both TAC and Vocarimex as part of the Group’s 
consolidated financials.

SHAREHOLDER RETURN

Underlying the Group’s strategy is the commitment to offering shareholders 
sustainable returns over the long-run. The Group’s dividend policy over the 
past 6 years has risen from VND833 per share in 2012 to VND1,600 per share 
in 2017. Furthermore, the share price of KDC has outperformed the market 
between the period of 2012 to 2017, with the percentage returns of 376%. 

KELLY WONG
Group Chief Financial Officer

OPERATING EXPENSE

BILLION 

VND 1,519

KIDO GROUP’S NET REVENUE

BILLION 

VND 7,016
TOTAL EQUITY

BILLION 

VND 7,817

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

BILLION 

VND 1,808

 DIVIDEND PER SHARE

VND 1,600

GROSS PROFIT

BILLION 

VND 1,453

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REVIEW (continued)
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The Group’s strategy revolves around our capability to deliver products that are frozen all the way through to 
packaged ones comprising the products with short and long shelf life. Importantly, our underlying concept is 

to be able to create a basket of goods that scaling our diversified product portfolio together to provide Vietnamese 
consumers with the right experience. This worth experience is about to deliver the right products, at the right time, 
right place and in the right format.

The primary goal is to not only scale each individual business category, but also in a complementary way, scale the 
whole basket of our product offering. 

We are not only trying to scale a single basket of goods. 
Our unique distribution capability allows us to have a 
broad enough product portfolio that serves consumers 
every month, every week, every three days and every 
day. From that, we can be sure that we are capturing 

CORPORATE STRATEGY

a large proportion of consumer’s spending on essential 
segment which is food and beverages. We are ambitious 
in pursuing our Group’s long-term goal through our 
unique distribution platform. We can capture at least 
approximately 76% of the consumer’s wallet share.
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The evolution of the Group’s product 
strategy is a key component of what 

makes our strategy unique compared 
to other competitors. Since we are 
no longer a single product company 
and therefore our ability to generate 
the “right” basket of products is really 
important. Previously, we were quite 
limited in the Snack and Confectionary 
segment which was highly seasonal 
and very narrow in terms of number of 
consumers. After that, we entered to 
the phase of developing Food & Flavor 
strategy which saw the introduction of 
daily products and helped us to capture 
a position in the kitchens of Vietnamese 
consumers. In making the final transition 
into a consumer-centric company, the 
Group is now targeting to the Consumer 
Products portion our product strategy. 
This strategy is defined by our ability to 
deliver the right consumer experience 
through a basket of products that 
contains the right product, at the right 
time, right place, in the right format. This 
will be our path in the coming years as 
we drive to continue to expand our 
product portfolio by heavily investing 
on R&D team for new innovations and 
collaborating with partners who have 
complementary skills and experiences. 
As a result, this will lead to increasing 
penetration rates in the Vietnamese 
market. And with accelerated 
urbanization rates, reach a wider segment 
of consumers and increase capacity 
utilization in our key channels. Within 
that, our primary competitive advantage 
is our distribution network that allows 
us to try putting new products in the 
pipeline and determine effectively which 
product will be scalable.  

CATEGORY STRATEGY

SNACKS

FOOD & 
FLAVOR

CONSUMER PRODUCT

RIGHT PRODUCT RIGHT FORMAT
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70 C

THE MAIN CHALLENGE WITH OUR STRATEGY CONSUMER 
PRODUCTS IS OUR ABILITY TO DEVELOP NEW PRODUCTS 
IN A QUICK AND COST EFFICIENT WAY. THIS KEY RISK IS 
MITIGATED IN OUR BUSINESS MODEL WHICH IS SEGREGATED 
INTO VALUE CONVERSION AND VALUE CREATION. 

BUSINESS MODEL
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VALUE CONVERSION 

Notably, this is still primarily done through our own internal production 
capability but as we expand our product portfolio, we cannot make it as fast 
as we would like. The main barrier is there is a lack of proof of underlying 
concept for new products to which limit our ability to allocate capital to 
create production capacity. Therefore, we generate new product categories 
in cooperation with OEM manufacturers or Brand partners. They support 
us in delivering a variety of products that are not only within their realm of 
experience and expertise, they can also advise us on insights that they may 
have in other markets when launching or starting a new product. 

VALUE CREATION 

This continues to be our core strength. We are involved in controlling essential 
business activities consisting of product localization (R&D), warehousing, 
marketing/branding/promotion and logistics of the product. We ensure that 
our products go through efficiently and effectively our distribution platform 
and reaches our 450,000 packaged and 70,000 frozen and chilled retail 
partners to reach the hands of our consumers. 

This business model allows us to be flexible in our manufacturing process and 
leverage the strengths of each of the parties within the entire supply chain. 
The ultimate goal is again to generate the right basket of products curated to 
each consumer.

BUSINESS MODEL (continued)
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THE COMPONENTS OF OUR PLATFORM STRATEGY ARE DEFINED 
BY THE 5 C’S: CONSUMER, CATEGORY, CHANNEL, COUNTRY, AND 
CAPITAL.

CONSUMERS

COUNTRY

CAPITAL CATEGORY

CHANNEL

CONSUMER
The new Consumer Products strategy started with the goal of creating a 
curated customer experience for our consumers by providing them with the 
right product, at the right time, at the right place and in the right format. 
This strategy is fully supported by is a robust change in consumer purchasing 
behavior, lower shopping frequency but higher spending per trip. 

This was an extension of our Food & Flavor strategy which only saw us begin 
to deepen our impact with our broad consumer base. The consumer is one 
of our organization’s top priorities; thus, growth will continue to come as we 
strive to be more adaptive to the market’s dynamic changes and we believe 
that a curated customer experience is the key driven for applying this strategy. 

CATEGORY
The combination of KDC, TAC, KDF and VOC has created a unified platform 
that can deliver a comprehensive consumer experience. Our main goal is 
to look beyond a single category and deliver a basket of diversified goods  
to our consumers.

As we look towards the future, we recognize the dynamics of the Vietnamese 
consumer have gradually changed and will continue to transform as the 
country evolves. Given the importance of the consumers, we have expanded 
our Product Strategy to include the next level of products that target 
“Consumer Products”. Today that means looking into our selected categories 
and designing the right portfolio to enable us to deliver a unique and 
distinctive experience for consumers.

CHANNEL
While the business model is consumer centric, our platform is about delivery 
and execution. The entire platform still centered on our delivery capabilities 
and the range of products that we can provide to our consumers. This means 
that for any particular product between frozen and packaged temperature can 
be delivered to the end users by the Group. Clearly, this will be the cornerstone 
of our success and the mainly competitive advantage for KIDO Group. 

COUNTRY
We will drive efficiency in our channel centric organization and keep product 
portfolio selection at the top of our agenda. With the rapid integration 
of regional markets, and reduction in tariffs, we recognize the inevitable 
competition that is targeted at Vietnam’s large consumer population.

With the creation of close knit markets and better integration, the Group 
must adjust its world view. The consumer market of Vietnam estimates at 
95.5 million Vietnamese consumers of which we are targeting to serve 85% 
of them through our products and platform, but with lower tariffs and closer 
market integration, competitive pressures will create a market of over 600 
million consumers covering all of South East Asia. 

CAPITAL
Establishing ourselves in the Food & Flavor industry has been a significant 
milestone for us. A big part of gaining so much ground so quickly was due 
to M&A opportunities and as a result capital allocation decision. We have 
successfully evolved away from a seasonal business into one that connects 
with consumers daily, every three days and weekly. As we enter the Consumer 
Products portion of our strategy, capital allocation becomes more important 
as we are expanding into multiple products simultaneously with the hope 
of creating a dynamic basket of products. We will continue to operate in a 
responsible manner that ensures capital returns over the long run are efficient 
and profitable.

CONSUMER PRODUCTS PUTS 
CONSUMERS FIRST

BEYOND A CATEGORY, WE ARE 
LOOKING TO CREATE A BASKET OF 

GOODS FOR OUR CONSUMERS

A BIG PART OF GAINING SO MUCH 
GROUND SO QUICKLY WAS DUE 

TO M&A OPPORTUNITIES AND AS 
A RESULT CAPITAL ALLOCATION 

DECISION

OUR PLATFORM IS STILL ABOUT 
DELIVERY AND EXECUTION

WITH CONSUMER PRODUCTS AND 
THE PLATFORM AS THE LEVERAGE, 
THE GROUP WILL USE EXPAND THE 

CONSUMER EXPERIENCE BEYOND 
VIETNAM

PLATFORM STRATEGY



We are proud of the development of KIDO Group an experienced management team, 
right strategic vision and execution plan which brings growth. This generates a 
strong foundation for KDC to reach a higher level.  

“Design For Success”

281 Distributors

70,000 FROZEN & CHILLED POS

450,000 POS

05 plants

40.2% market share

85% of Vietnamese population

75.44%

65%

51%

Orient for FUTURE,

Chapter 3: 
Corporate Governance
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KIDO VIEWS EACH STAKEHOLDER AS ONE OF OUR PARTNERS, 
INCLUDING CONSUMERS OF OUR PRODUCTS, SUPPLIERS TO 
OUR BUSINESS, DISTRIBUTORS, RETAILERS, INVESTORS AND 
EMPLOYEES.

POLICY FOUNDATION
We recognize that each group of stakeholders is not mutually exclusive and, 
therefore, it is critical for us to be consistent in our communication to them 
to ensure that all parties understand our strategic orientation and direction.

We always ensure that our corporate activities and initiatives meet the 
expectations of different groups of stakeholders and enable us to meet the 
dynamics of a constantly changing business environment. Therefore, we 
prioritize the need to enhance the corporate governance structure and as a 
result our management capability. This will enable us to build trust through 
transparency and social responsibility with our stakeholders.

FEATURES OF OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
STRUCTURE
The Group has undergone a significant transformation over the last three years 
and throughout the process, our goal has been to create a strong foundation 
of systems and processes to execute and deliver profitable business results. 
Thus, we have put foremost the mission to simplify our corporate structure to 
improve corporate transparency and enable efficiency enhancements across 
all activities.

We have also adopted a cross functional Executive Management Committee 
(EMC) structure at each Business Unit, and that has helped to improve 
communication across the Group and facilitate fast and timely decision 
making. This cross-functional structure relies on transparency between 
functions and throughout the Group to facilitate discussion and decision-
making that enhance efficiency.

We have already introduced Business Units operational model for some time 
to manage the commercial aspects of our business.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors consists of nine directors, including three independent 
members. Independent directors are chosen from a pool of candidates that 
are screened based on their experience and background.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES TOWARD BOARD OF 
MANAGEMENT
The Board of Director closely supervised the management through quarterly 
reports of Board of Management in quarterly meetings.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMITTEES ACTIVITIES
Until the end of 2016, KIDO Group has not formed any board committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESS
The Group and BU’s conduct ongoing risk identification 
which is then consolidated at the Risk Management  
Sub-Committee to monitor risks across the Group.

These reports are presented to the EMC who discusses 
and deliberates on the potential impact and probability 
in order to determine which ones need to be addressed.

Our Group is to come up with a control activity to monitor and mitigate the 
risk. For all risk and impact levels that have control activities created around 
them, they are returned to the Group and BU’s to continue to monitor the 
situation to ensure that any increase or change is promptly reported to the 
Sub-Committee.

On an annual basis, controls and risk management monitoring systems 
are audited by internal control and any changes needed are implemented 
following the audit. Post reviews, new policies are adopted and implemented 
and the cycle starts again to ensure that risk management is active vs. 
passive in nature which is more suitable for a dynamic business environment  
like Vietnam.

RISK FACTORS ARE CATEGORIZED THROUGH A GRADING SYSTEM FROM 
UNLIKELY TO HIGHLY PROBABLY AND SCORED AGAINST POTENTIAL 
IMPACT THAT RANGES FROM MARGINAL TO MAJOR WITH POTENTIAL 
MONETARY VALUES ASSIGNED. IF A POTENTIAL RISK FACTOR IS 
IDENTIFIED TO HAVE THE LIKELIHOOD OF “PROBABLE” AND WITH A 
POTENTIAL IMPACT OF SIGNIFICANT, IT IS SENT TO THE RISK MANAGEMENT 
SUBCOMMITTEE TO WORK WITH INTERNAL CONTROL TO COME UP WITH 
A CONTROL ACTIVITY TO MONITOR AND MITIGATE THE RISK.

THESE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ARE UPDATED INTO 
OUR MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AND MADE AVAILABLE ON THE 
GROUP INTRANET. THE INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT 
WILL FOLLOW UP TO AUDIT THE PROCESS AND REVIEW ITS 
IMPLEMENTATION ON A REGULAR BASIS.

RISK MANAGEMENT

COMMODITY 
PRICE RISK 

FINANCIAL RISK

OPERATIONAL 
RISKS

STRATEGIC
RISKS

KEY RISK 
FACTORS

Risk factors are categorized through a grading system 
from “Unlikely” to “Highly Probably” and scored against 
potential impact that ranges from “Marginal” to “Major” 
with potential monetary values assigned. If a potential risk 
factor is identified to have the likelihood of “Probable” and 
with a potential impact of “Significant”, it is sent to the Risk 
Management Sub-Committee to work with Internal.
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STRATEGIC RISKS
MACRO-ECONOMIC, SOCIO-POLITICAL AND REGULATORY RISKS

Economic downturns and socio-political issues negatively impact consumer 
spending as individuals reduce discretionary spending. The Group monitors 
the regional economic and socio-political environment closes to anticipate 
changes in consumer sentiment. We also maintain conservative policies 
in product purchasing, working capital management and cost controls to 
ensure sensitivity to demand changes are minimized.

DEPENDENCY RISK

Risk associated with a dependence on a particular supplier, customer, business 
partner, or product. An over reliance on a particular supplier, customer or 
product makes KDC vulnerable to sales reduction and margin pressures. To 
mitigate this risk, the Group works with a broad network of suppliers, both 
domestically and internationally, to ensure not only stability in the supply 
chain but also the best quality. The Group manages the distribution network 
in the same manner, ensuring that no one customer group in any geography 
is over 10% of our total sales volume.

EXECUTION RISK

The recent shift of the Group’s strategic direction has the potential to increase 
execution risk as we add new products and also processes to deliver those 
products to market. The mitigation here is that we have created a robust 
platform that we believe has the ability to plug and play.

CONSUMER DEMAND RISK

Being able to anticipate changes in consumer sentiment and demand is a 
critical success factor and failure to do so represents a significant risk to the 
Group. In order to mitigate this, the Group leverages its Value Creation process 
in order to proactively manage the feedback process thus minimize the risk of 
consumer demand risk.

In addition, the strength and loyalty of our networks have given us the ability 
to minimize the execution risk in and around new product/category launches.

Having strong retailer and distributor relationships is a critical success factor 
for ensuring product reach, penetration and sales growth.

OPERATIONAL RISKS
CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP RISK

Failure to maintain these relationships represents a potential risk factor to the 
Group and in order to mitigate this, we are committed to delivering outstanding 
customer service which is supported by our technological infrastructure that 
enables us to connect closer to our value chain downstream. This includes the 
ability to monitor inventory levels, sales process, and also consumer feedback; 
creating a robust system that enhances customer relationships.

VOLATILITY OF RAW MATERIAL PRICES

Changes in raw material prices pose a significant risk to our profitability and 
margins.

In order to mitigate this risk, we share the responsibility of managing this risk 
with our suppliers. We provide them with a clear forward-looking materials 
demand plan and secure fixed pricing for a period of time in order to have 
stability and certainty in our production costs.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK, FINANCIAL RISK
CURRENCY RISKS

Currency risks are a direct result of our foreign exchange inflows and also 
foreign exchange denominated borrowing. To the extent possible, we ensure 
a natural hedge to ensure that the inflows are sufficient to cover the outflows 
of US dollar in order to mitigate the currency risks. When that is not possible, 
the Group will hedge USD exposure as it is created.

Changes in the global and regional financial markets may have a significant 
impact on interest rates, which may lead to risks associated to profitability, 
liquidity and financing. In order to mitigate this risk, we actively monitor the 
markets and also the duration of our debt positions to ensure that we have 
enough cash flows and cash balances to meet our obligations.

FINANCING AND LIQUIDITY RISKS

In the event that markets contract and liquidity is scarce, causing rates to 
rise, we reduce our debt positions using our cash balances and supplement 
working capital financing with cash on hand.

MAINTAIN CONSERVATIVE 
POLICIES IN PRODUCT 

PURCHASING, WORKING 
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND 
COST CONTROLS TO ENSURE 

SENSITIVITY TO DEMAND 
CHANGES ARE MINIMIZED.

FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THESE 
RELATIONSHIPS REPRESENTS 

A POTENTIAL RISK FACTOR 
TO THE GROUP AND IN ORDER 

TO MITIGATE THIS, WE ARE 
COMMITTED TO DELIVERING 

OUTSTANDING CUSTOMER 
SERVICE.

WE ENSURE A NATURAL 
HEDGE TO ENSURE THAT THE 

INFLOWS ARE SUFFICIENT 
TO COVER THE OUTFLOWS 

OF US DOLLAR IN ORDER TO 
MITIGATE THE CURRENCY 

RISKS.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)



Annual Report 2017
KIDO GROUP

52

53

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD MEETING & RESOLUTION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES TOWARD BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
The Board of Directors closely supervised the management through quarterly report of Board of Management in 
quarterly meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES
Until the end of 2017, KIDO Group has not formed any board committee.

RESOLUTION/ DECISIONS OF THE BOD (BIANNUAL REPORTS)    
  

NO. RESOLUTION NO. DATE CONTENT

1 KDC01/2017/NQ-HĐQT 07/04/2017
Resolution on transferring a part of stake at KIDO Frozen 
Foods Joint Stock Company (“KDF”) and listing KDF shares 
on UPCoM Stock Exchange

2 KDC02/2017/NQ-HĐQT 26/05/2017
Resolution on investing in Dabaco Foodstuff Processing 
Company

3 KDC03/2017/NQ-HĐQT 02/06/2017 Resolution on holding Annual General Meeting 2017

4 KDC04/2017/NQ-HĐQT 16/06/2017
Resolution on electing Chairman of Annual General 
Meeting 2017

5 KDC05/2017/NQ-HĐQT 06/07/2017
Resolution on selecting independent auditor of 2017 
financial statements

6 KDC06/2017/NQ-HĐQT 06/07/2017 Resolution on the cash dividend payment for 2016

7 KDC07/2017/NQ-HĐQT 07/08/2017
Resolution on transferring a part of stake at KIDO Frozen 
Foods Joint Stock Company (“KDF”)

8 KDC08/2017/NQ-HĐQT 13/11/2017
Resolution on transferring all ownership of KIDO Group 
Corporation in Tan An Phuoc Co., Ltd

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS     
  

No. Date Content

1 07/04/2017
Approve the transferring a part of stake at KIDO Frozen Foods Joint Stock 
Company (“KDF”) and listing KDF shares on UPCoM Stock Exchange

2 26/05/2017 Approve the investing in Dabaco Foodstuff Processing Company

3 02/06/2017 Approve the holding Annual General Meeting 2017

4 16/06/2017 Approve the electing Chairman of Annual General Meeting 2017

5 06/07/2017 Approve the selecting independent auditor of 2017 financial statements

6 06/07/2017 Approve the cash dividend payment for 2016

7 07/08/2017
Approve the transferring a part of stake at KIDO Frozen Foods Joint 
Stock Company (“KDF”):

8 13/11/2017
Approve the transferring all ownership of KIDO Group Corporation in 
Tan An Phuoc Co., Ltd

No. BOARD OF DIRECTORS POSITION ATTENDANCE % ATTENDANCE

1 Tran Kim Thanh Chairman 7/8 88%

2 Tran Le Nguyen Vice chairman 8/8 100%

3 Wang Ching Hua Member 8/8 100%

4 Vuong Buu Linh Member 8/8 100%

5 Nguyen Gia Huy Chuong Member 8/8 100%

6 Vuong Ngoc Xiem Member 8/8 100%

7 Tran Quoc Nguyen Member 8/8 100%

8 Nguyen Van Thuan Member 8/8 100%

9 Nguyen Duc Tri Member 8/8 100%



KIDO Group’s goal is to maximize our share of the consumer's basket of goods by 
choosing and delivering high quality products that meet the need of consumers 
throughout the day. In addition, we are improving our distribution channel to 
ensure the delivery of our products to the consumers. Our Group’s priority is to work 
closely with the strategic partners to make sure that consumers will choose our 
quality products to achieve the highest level of satisfaction.

our COMMITMENT

PRODUCT QUALITY

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

SUSTAINABILITY

Affirming prestige from

Chapter 4: Corporate Social Responsibility
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

OUR VISION 

THROUGHOUT THE HISTORY OF THE GROUP, WE HAVE 
CONSIDERED CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AS ONE 
OF OUR CORE VALUES.

OUR ENTIRE TEAM HAS PUT FORWARD OUR BEST EFFORTS 
TO ACHIEVE THIS IN ALL OF OUR DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS, 
FROM MANUFACTURING, PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT, TO 
EMPLOYEE WELFARE AND SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION.

Such efforts have been manifested in our safe and high-quality products, 
dedicated, and trustworthy sales service, as well as timely support for a variety 
of charity events. The total amount donated by KIDO Group since 2012 to 
2017 was VND 5.877 billion. We ran different charity events as raising funds for 
natural disaster victims, sponsoring eye surgeries, providing health insurance 
cards for the poor, delivering Tet gifts to orphans, supporting educational 
programs and talent development. All of these are proof of our strong 
commitment to the community, which has helped us establish trust with 
our partners, improve customer satisfaction, maintain solid relationships with 
suppliers and gain consumer’s confidence.

BILLION 
VND 5.877

THE TOTAL DONATED AMOUNT OF 
KIDO GROUP SINCE 2012 TO 2017CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

PRODUCT QUALITY
To our Company, the definition of product quality entails producing not only 
tasty but also healthy products for consumers. By continuously searching 
for stable sources of raw materials that are safe and high quality, as well as 
putting investment in R&D, we have been making many new outstanding 
products that are delicious, healthy and nutritious to meet and exceed the 
rising expectations of consumers.

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION
Success of KDC is reflected not only in the positive financial performance 
with sustainable growth but also in being able to create a positive impact 
on society, having ongoing trust and support from partners, shareholders, 
consumers and employees throughout our journey.
Consumers trust and use our products because we have always proved 
ourselves to be committed to quality, and societal responsibility through our 
active participation in community service.

In order to contribute to environmental protection, KIDO 2017 Annual Report 
is printed in limited numbers and used environmentally friendly paper. 
Therefore, please transfer to those interested if you don’t need to use the 
report. In addition, KIDO 2017 Annual Report is also available in electronic 
version at: www.kdc.vnSUSTAINABILITY

We believe that an organization will only be able to have sustainable growth 
when operating in a sustainable environment. We have always emphasized 
awareness in abiding by the requirements for producing environmentally-
friendly products. Our effort in protecting the environment has been 
recognized and praised by the local authorities and the local community.

• Operations management in accordance with international standards such 
as ISO 14001:2005, OHSAS 18001:2008, ISO 9001:2008, ISO 22000:2010...

• Aligning environmental protection standards to the KPIs of each 
individuals; regular training for employees to develop awareness about the 
environment and practice environmental incidents response drills.

• Strictly observing environmental protection regulations and standards 
(maintaining grade-A wastewater, good environmental monitoring, eco-
friendly fuel such as diesel or natural gas with low levels of pollutants, 
investing in inverters for high-power equipment, replacing lighting 
equipment by solar-powered LED lights, reducing wastewater and reusing 
processed wastewater, etc.)

OUR COMMITMENTS



Value creation continues to be the core strength of KIDO Group. We are strongly 
developing and enhancing the managerial platform, increasing the consumer’s 
convenience and generating value in our strategic vision and execution plan. KIDO 
Group continuously creates values and promotes its leading position.

promoting LEADING POSITION

1,453
Gross profit
(VND Billion)

7,016
Net Revenue
(VND Billion)

281
Distributors

Creating VALUE,

Chapter 5: Financial Report
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THE COMPANY

Kido Group Corporation (“the Company”) is a shareholding company incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of 
Vietnam pursuant to the Business Registration Certificate (“BRC”) No. 4103001184 issued by the Department of Planning 
and Investment (“DPI”) of Ho Chi Minh City on 6 September 2002 and the subsequent amended BRCs.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange in accordance with the License  
No. 39/UBCK-GPNY issued by the State Securities Commission on 18 November 2005.

The current principal activities of the Company are to wholesale of food products; sell and purchase agricultural 
products and foods.

The Company’s registered head office is located at No. 138 - 142 Hai Ba Trung, Da Kao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh 
City, Vietnam.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr Tran Kim Thanh Chairman

Mr Tran Le Nguyen Vice Chairman

Mr Wang Ching Hua Member

Ms Vuong Buu Linh Member

Ms Vuong Ngoc Xiem Member

Mr Tran Quoc Nguyen Member

Mr Nguyen Van Thuan Member

Mr Nguyen Gia Huy Chuong Member

Mr Nguyen Duc Tri Member

BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supervision during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr Luong Quang Hien Head

Ms Luong My Duyen Member

Mr Vo Long Nguyen Member

MANAGEMENT

Members of the management during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr Tran Le Nguyen General Director

Ms Vuong Buu Linh Deputy General Director

Ms Vuong Ngoc Xiem Deputy General Director

Mr Wang Ching Hua Deputy General Director

Mr Nguyen Xuan Luan Deputy General Director

Mr Mai Xuan Tram Deputy General Director

Mr Bui Thanh Tung Deputy General Director

Mr Tran Quoc Nguyen Deputy General Director

Mr Tran Quoc Viet Deputy General Director

Mr Tran Tien Hoang Deputy General Director

Mr Kelly Yin Hon Wong Deputy General Director

Mr Ma Thanh Danh Deputy General Director

Ms Nguyen Thi Xuan Lieu Deputy General Director

Ms Nguyen Thi Hanh Deputy General Director

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company during the year and at the date of this report is Mr Tran Kim Thanh. 

Mr Tran Le Nguyen is authorized by Mr Tran Kim Thanh to sign the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITORS

The auditor of the Company is Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.

GENERAL INFORMATION
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Management of Kido Group Corporation (“the Company”) is pleased to present its report and the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of each financial year which give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and of the consolidated results of its operations and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year. In preparing those consolidated financial statements, management is required to:

 9 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

 9 make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

 9 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 
and explained in the consolidated financial statements; and

 9 prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 
that the Group will continue its business.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with reasonable 
accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Group and to ensure that the accounting records 
comply with the applied accounting system. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence 
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT 

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of the consolidated results 
of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting 
Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

For and on behalf of management:

Tran Le Nguyen
General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

28 March 2018

TO: THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KIDO GROUP CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kido Group Corporation and its subsidiaries 
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) as prepared on 28 March 2018 and set out on pages 68 to 127, which comprise 
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated income statement and the consolidated 
cash flow statement for the year then ended and the notes thereto. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and 
the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements, and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the 
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of the consolidated results of its operations 
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, 
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements.

ERNST & YOUNG VIETNAM LIMITED

Hang Nhat Quang Luong Kim Dien An
Deputy General Director     
Audit Practicing Registration Certificate
No. 1772-2018-004-1
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
28 March 2018

Auditor
Audit Practicing Registration Certificate
No. 2736-2014-004-1

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 
Reference: 60752643/19356738-HN 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT



Annual Report 2017
KIDO GROUP

68

69

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VND

Code ASSETS Notes Ending balance
Beginning balance

(As restated - Note 30)

100 A. CURRENT ASSETS 5,406,718,261,845 5,055,634,211,130 

110 I. Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,807,684,470,044 1,683,337,775,577 

111 1. Cash 262,154,470,044 165,334,267,283 

112 2. Cash equivalents 1,545,530,000,000 1,518,003,508,294 

120 II.  Short-term investments 13.1 1,375,855,603,082  653,503,729,901 

121 1.  Held-for-trading securities 401,120,064 3,949,434,564 

122 2. Provision for diminution in value of held-for-trading 
securities

(1,390,713) (445,704,663)

123 3. Held-to-maturity investments 1,375,455,873,731 650,000,000,000 

130 III. Current accounts receivable 1,066,848,103,700 1,954,490,525,510 

131 1. Short-term trade receivables 6 654,283,740,094 406,023,133,056 

132 2. Short-term advances to suppliers 6 87,223,962,159 74,347,949,755 

135 3. Short-term loan receivables 6 8,000,000,000 8,000,000,000 

136 4. Other short-term receivables 6 359,259,750,288 1,477,765,348,246 

137 5. Provision for doubtful short-term receivables 6 (42,505,147,499) (11,645,905,547)

139 6. Shortage of assets waiting for resolution 585,798,658 - 

140 IV. Inventories 7 1,022,532,063,301 667,967,089,904 

141 1. Inventories 1,026,716,599,642 678,008,300,538 

149 2. Provision for obsolete inventories (4,184,536,341) (10,041,210,634)

150 V. Other current assets 133,798,021,718 96,335,090,238 

151 1.  Short-term prepaid expenses 8 19,090,092,483 13,568,506,662 

152 2. Value-added tax deductible 95,840,997,848 81,928,436,425 

153 3. Tax and other receivables from the State 15 18,866,931,387 838,147,151 

VND

Code ASSETS   Notes Ending balance
Beginning balance

(As restated - Note 30)

200 B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 5,900,456,944,395 4,312,067,726,875 

210 I. Long-term receivables 9 117,925,840,635 27,806,169,630 

212 1. Long-term advance to supplier 17,304,707,562 18,454,707,562 

216 2. Other long-term receivables 100,621,133,073 9,351,462,068 

220 II. Fixed assets 2,332,220,118,084 2,270,607,344,842 

221  1. Tangible fixed assets 10 1,278,903,401,078 822,896,790,489 

222  Cost 2,336,812,517,495 1,424,620,732,847 

223  Accumulated depreciation (1,057,909,116,417) (601,723,942,358)

227 2. Intangible assets 11 1,053,316,717,006 1,447,710,554,353 

228  Cost 1,169,580,857,925 1,501,542,001,647 

229  Accumulated amortization (116,264,140,919) (53,831,447,294)

230 III. Investment properties 5,370,446,842 -

231 1.  Cost 11,797,057,729 -

232 2. Accumulated depreciation (6,426,610,887) -

240 IV. Long-term assets in progress 22,339,107,966 51,194,729,721 

242  1.  Construction in progress 12 22,339,107,966 51,194,729,721 

250 V. Long-term investments 2,157,486,852,387 1,634,742,246,014 

252 1.  Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities 13.2 2,133,930,301,610 1,634,742,246,014 

253 2.  Investment in another entity 13.3 23,556,550,777 - 

260 VI. Other long-term assets 1,265,114,578,481 327,717,236,668 

261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses 8 181,904,660,348 141,883,545,324 

262 2. Deferred tax assets 27.3 31,293,201,201 35,285,374,122 

269 3. Goodwill 4.7 1,051,916,716,932 150,548,317,222 

270 TOTAL ASSETS 11,307,175,206,240 9,367,701,938,005 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  
as at 31 December 2017

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
as at 31 December 2017 (continued)B01-DN/HNB01-DN/HN
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VND

Code RESOURCES Notes Ending balance
Beginning balance

(As restated - Note 30)
300 C. LIABILITIES 3,489,794,729,246 2,859,216,867,885 

310 I. Current liabilities 2,301,648,696,226 1,605,193,733,300 

311 1. Short-term trade payables 14 460,169,613,902 348,434,636,059 

312 2. Short-term advances from customers 20,148,907,250 27,503,484,462 

313 3. Statutory obligations 15 57,308,191,207 104,158,920,838 

314 4. Payables to employees 134,571,945,985 97,082,897,135 

315 5. Short-term accrued expenses 16 150,716,162,297 146,768,677,940 

318 6. Short-term unearned revenues - 666,666,672 

319 7. Other short-term payables 17 150,879,142,474 30,938,632,294 

320 8. Short-term loans 18 1,291,314,766,741 843,698,690,786 

322 9. Bonus and welfare fund 36,539,966,370 5,941,127,114 

330 II. Non-current liabilities 1,188,146,033,020 1,254,023,134,585 

337 1. Other long-term liabilities 26,898,833,246 17,360,374,664 

338 2. Long-term loans 18 864,687,264,084 997,954,021,856 

341 3. Deferred tax liabilities 27.3 268,918,448,456 215,866,165,430 

342 4. Long-term provisions 27,641,487,234 22,842,572,635 

400 D. OWNERS’ EQUITY 7,817,380,476,994 6,508,485,070,120 

410 I. Capital 7,817,380,476,994 6,508,485,070,120 

411 1. Share capital 19.1 2,566,533,970,000 2,566,533,970,000 

411a - Shares with voting rights 2,566,533,970,000 2,566,533,970,000

412 2. Share premium 19.1 3,192,080,967,500 3,192,083,261,700 

414 3. Other owners’ capital 19.1 104,000,000,000 159,680,000,000 

415 4. Treasury shares 19.1 (1,959,478,509,838) (1,959,484,318,538)

418 5. Investment and development fund 19.1 67,787,061,385 51,162,916,267 

420 6. Other funds belonging to owners’ equity 19.1 15,909,752,661 15,909,752,661 

421 7. Undistributed earnings    19.1 2,377,423,193,720 1,910,023,820,908 

421a  - Undistributed earnings up to prior year-end 2,038,231,259,465 733,551,955,291 

421b  - Undistributed earnings of the current year 339,191,934,255 1,176,471,865,617 

429 8. Non-controlling interests 19.6 1,453,124,041,566  572,575,667,122 

440 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY 11,307,175,206,240 9,367,701,938,005 

VND

Code ITEMS Notes Current year Previous year
(As restated - Note 30)

01 1. Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of 
services

20.1 7,118,097,737,821 2,272,416,116,876 

02 2. Deductions 20.1 (101,772,501,229) (33,640,684,377)

10 3. Net revenue from sale of goods and rendering of 
services

20.1 7,016,325,236,592 2,238,775,432,499 

11 4. Cost of goods sold and services rendered 21 (5,562,876,351,228) (1,366,565,469,545)

20 5. Gross profit from sale of goods and rendering of 
services

1,453,448,885,364 872,209,962,954 

21 6. Finance income 20.2 641,179,572,864 1,548,026,247,947 

22 7. Finance expenses 22 (161,220,248,439) (95,709,391,246)

23  In which: Interest expense (157,276,630,519) (38,641,296,719)

24 8. Shares of profit of joint ventures and associates 13.2 148,223,754,880 129,662,518,424 

25 9. Selling expenses 23 (1,061,728,202,516) (720,947,362,683)

26 10. General and administrative expenses 24 (457,655,985,667) (251,621,683,987)

30 11. Operating profit 562,247,776,486 1,481,620,291,409 

31 12. Other income 26 21,707,536,880 38,601,764,837 

32 13. Other expenses 26 (23,316,703,491) (14,317,340,560)

40 14. Other (loss) profit 26 (1,609,166,611) 24,284,424,277 

50 15. Accounting profit before tax 560,638,609,875 1,505,904,715,686 

51 16. Current income tax expense 27.1 (63,019,362,603) (328,256,661,438)

52 17. Deferred tax (expense) income 27.1 (57,513,816,421) 5,734,250,396 

60 18. Net profit after tax 440,105,430,851 1,183,382,304,644 

61 19. Net profit after tax attributable to shareholders of 
the parent

339,191,934,255 1,176,471,865,617

62 20. Net profit after tax attributable to non-controlling 
interests

19.6 100,913,496,596  6,910,439,027 

70 21. Basic earnings per share 19.5 1,602 5,623

71 22. Diluted earnings per share 19.5 1,602 5,623

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
as at 31 December 2017 (continued)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2017B02-DN/HNB01-DN/HN

Tran Minh Nguyet Nguyen Thi Oanh Tran Le Nguyen

Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

28 March 2018

Tran Minh Nguyet Nguyen Thi Oanh Tran Le Nguyen

Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

28 March 2018
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VND

Code ITEMS Notes Current year
Previous year

(As restated - Note 30)

I.  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

01 Accounting profit before tax 560,638,609,875 1,505,904,715,686 

Adjustments for:

02 Depreciation and amortization 296,764,328,918 79,906,166,792 

03 Provisions 23,785,088,885 8,539,336,884 

04
Foreign exchange differences arising from revaluation 
of monetary accounts denominated in foreign 
currency

(948,191,761) (64,865,953)

05 Profits from investing activities (782,546,471,984) (1,623,505,934,924)

06 Allocation of bond issuance and interest expense 22 159,429,271,459 38,901,077,541 

08 Operating profit before changes in working capital 257,122,635,392 9,680,496,026 

09 Increase in receivables (241,174,743,437) (9,124,083,622)

10 Increase in inventories (28,254,022,278) (6,090,533,688)

11 Increase (decrease) in payables 178,918,297,981 (26,223,124,953)

12 Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 1,596,298,154 (3,646,729,300)

13 Decrease in held-for-trading securities 3,548,314,500 3,773,080 

14 Interest paid (163,414,116,710) (28,273,393,656)

15 Corporate income tax paid (57,396,448,919) (35,950,245,559)

17 Other cash outflows for operating activities (20,219,856,345) (31,132,135,681)

20 Net cash flows used in operating activities (69,273,641,662) (130,755,977,353)

II.  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

21  Purchase and construction of fixed assets (115,632,799,442) (549,476,541,544)

22  Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 5,899,054,425 2,239,699,660 

23  Loans to other entities and term bank deposits (541,014,310,235) (50,000,000,000)

24  Collections from borrowers and term bank deposits 100,000,000,000 1,305,098,000,000 

25  Payments for investments in other entities (1,054,115,393,333) (1,566,054,371,341)

26  Proceeds from sale of investments in other entities 2,547,371,260,636 1,667,648,000,400 

 Tax paid for disposal of investments (193,149,996,332) (1,057,762,085,703)

27  Dividends and interest received 158,179,557,136 117,434,411,810 

30 Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 907,537,372,855 (130,872,886,718)

VND

Code ITEMS Notes Current year
Previous year

(As restated - Note30)

III. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

32  Reissuance (purchase) of treasury shares 3,514,500 (831,373,476)

33  Borrowings received 18 4,121,408,045,007 2,824,865,891,612 

34  Borrowings repaid 18 (4,412,433,094,685) (1,536,346,509,254)

36 Dividends paid to equity holder of the parent company 19.4 (329,489,247,340) (493,745,506,850)

 Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (93,348,727,680) (16,503,600)

40 Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities (713,859,510,198) 793,925,998,432 

50 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 124,404,220,995 532,297,134,361 

60 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5 1,683,337,775,577 1,151,036,779,095 

61 Impact of exchange rate fluctuation (57,526,528) 3,862,121 

70 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 1,807,684,470,044  1,683,337,775,577 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2017

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2017(continued)B03-DN/HNB03-DN/HN

Tran Minh Nguyet Nguyen Thi Oanh Tran Le Nguyen

Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

28 March 2018
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Group consists of Kido Group Corporation (“KDC” or “the Company”) and its subsidiaries, associates and 
two jointly controlled entities as follows:

Company

Kido Group Corporation is a shareholding company incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam 
pursuant to the Business Registration Certificate (“BRC”) No. 4103001184 issued by the Department of Planning 
and Investment (“DPI”) of Ho Chi Minh City on 6 September 2002 and the subsequent amended BRCs.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange in accordance with the License No. 39/
UBCK-GPNY issued by the State Securities Commission on 18 November 2005.

The current principal activities of the Group are to wholesale food products; sell and purchase agricultural 
products and foods, industrial products, and fabric; produce and trade all kinds of food and drink products 
such as ice, ice cream, milk and other dairy products; cooking oil and to operate in the real estate industry.

The Company’s registered head office is located at No. 138 - 142 Hai Ba Trung, Da Kao Ward, District 1,  
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

The number of the Group’s employees as at 31 December 2017 was 3,962 (31 December 2016: 2,480).

Subsidiaries

KIDO Frozen Foods Joint Stock Company (“KDF”)

KDC holds a 65% equity interest in KDF, which is a joint stock company incorporated under the Law on 
Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 4103001557 issued by the Ho Chi Minh City Department of 
Planning and Investment on 14 April 2003 and the subsequent amended BRCs. The registered head office and 
factory of KDF are located at Cu Chi Northwest Industrial Park, Cay Sop Village, Tan An Hoi Ward, Cu Chi District, 
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

Hanoi Trading and International Cooperation (“HTIC”)

KDC holds a 75.73% equity interest in HTIC which is a shareholding company incorporated under the Law on 
Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 0103000347 issued by the DPI of Ha Noi City on 11 May 2001. 
The registered office of HTIC is located at No. 534 - 536, Bach Mai Street, Truong Dinh Ward, Hai Ba Trung 
District, Ha Noi, Vietnam. 

KIDO Trading and Service Company Limited (“KTS”)

KDC holds a 100% equity interest in KTS which is a one-member limited liability company incorporated under 
the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 0313172800 issued by the DPI of Ho Chi Minh City 
on 23 March 2015. The registered head office of KTS is located at 11th Floor, Empress Tower, No. 138 - 142  
Hai Ba Trung, Da Kao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

Kido Food Company Limited (“KIDOFOOD”)

KDC holds a 100% equity interest in KIDOFOOD, which is a one-member limited liability company incorporated 
under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 0106681285 issued by the DPI of Hanoi City 
on 3 November 2014 and the subsequent amended BRCs. The registered head office of KIDOFOOD is located 
at 10th Floor, Vinaconex Tower, No. 34 Lang Ha, Lang Ha Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi, Vietnam.

1.  CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

 Subsidiaries (continued)

Tuong An Vegetable Oil Joint Stock Company (“Tuong An”)

KDC holds a 75.44% equity interest and 88.44% voting rights in Tuong An, is a joint stock company, which is 
originally established from the equitization of Tuong An Vegetable Oil Factory under Vietnam Cosmetic Flavour 
and Vegetable Oil Company (currently known as Vietnam Vegetable Oils Industry Corporation) according to 
the Decision No. 42/2004/QĐ-BCN issued by the Ministry of Industry (currently known as Ministry of Industry 
and Trade) on 4 June 2004. Tuong An is currently operating pursuant to the BRC No. 4103002698 dated 27 
September 2004 and the subsequent amended BRCs. Its current principal activities are to manufacturing 
vegetable oils, plant and animal fats. The registered head office of Tuong An is located at No. 138 - 142  
Hai Ba Trung, Da Kao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

Vietnam Vegetable Oils Industry Corporation (“Vocarimex”)

KDC holds a 51% equity interests in Vocarimex, originally a State-owned enterprise established pursuant to 
the Decision No. 452/CN-TCLD dated 6 June 1992 issued by the Ministry of Industry (i.e. currently known 
as Ministry of Industry and Trade), which is currently a shareholding company incorporated under the Law 
on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 0300585984 issued by the DPI of Ho Chi Minh City on 31 
December 2014 and the subsequent amended BRCs. Its current principal activities are to produce and trade 
all kinds of animal and vegetable oils and fats. The registered head office of Vocarimex is located at No. 58 
Nguyen Binh Khiem, Da Kao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

Vegetable Oils Packing Joint Stock Company (“VPK”)

KDC holds a 51.05% indirect voting rights in VPK, which is a joint stock company controlled by Vocarimex 
incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 4103001186 issued by the DPI 
of Ho Chi Minh City on 25 October 2002 and the subsequent amended BRCs. Its current principal activities are 
to manufacturing label paper, paper and cardboard packaging. The registered head office and factory of VPK is 
located at Lot No. 6-12, Tan Hiep Thoi Industrial Zone, Hiep Thanh Ward, District 12, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

Nhat Hao International Company Limited (“Nhat Hao”)

KDC holds a 100% equity interest in Nhat Hao, which is a one-member limited liability company incorporated 
under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 0314631140 issued by the DPI of Ho Chi Minh 
City on 19 September 2017. The registered head office of Nhat Hao is located at 10th Floor, Empress Tower, No. 
138 - 142 Hai Ba Trung, Da Kao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam. Its principal activities are to trade 
all kinds of food and drinks.
 
Associates

Phong Thinh Investment Development Joint Stock Company (“Phong Thinh”)

KDC holds a 34% equity interests in Phong Thinh, which is a joint stock company incorporated under the 
Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 0314098268 issued by the DPI of Ho Chi Minh City 
on 5 November 2016. Its principal activities are to operate in the real estate and construction industry. The 
registered head office of Phong Thinh is located at No. 436 - 438 No Trang Long Street, Ward 13, Binh Thanh 
District, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam. As at 31 December 2017, Phong Thinh is still in pre-operating stage.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)B09-DN/HNB09-DN/HN



Annual Report 2017
KIDO GROUP

76

77

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) B09-DN/HNB09-DN/HN

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

 Associates (continued)

Cai Lan Oils & Fats Industries Co., Ltd. (“Calofic”)

KDC holds a 24% indirect voting rights in Calofic, which is a limited liability company with two or more 
members in which Vocarimex has significant influence, incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam 
pursuant to the Investment Registration Certificate (“IRC”) No. 2148108377 issued by the Management Board 
of Quang Ninh Economic Zone on 30 December 2015 and the following amended IRCs. Its current principal 
activities are to manufacture and trade all kinds of animal and vegetable oils and fats, all kinds of oilseeds and 
grains. The registered head office of Calofic is located at Cai Lan Industrial Zone, Ha Long City, Quang Ninh 
Province, Vietnam. 

LG Vina Cosmetics Company Limited (“LG Vina”)

KDC holds a 40% indirect voting rights in LG Vina, which is a limited liability company with two or more 
members in which Vocarimex has significant influence, incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam 
pursuant to the BRC No. 3600254869 issued by the DPI of Dong Nai Province on 22 October 1997 and the 
subsequent amended BRCs. Its principal activities are to produce and trade in sell skin-care and make-up 
products, fragrances, hair clearing and care products, oral care products, soap and household clearing products 
for local market and export market; and to import and trade the cosmetics. The registered head office of LG 
Vina is located at Nhon Trach II Industrial Zone, Hiep Phuoc Ward, Nhon Trach District, Dong Nai Province, 
Vietnam.

Golden Hope Nha Be Edible Oils Co., Ltd. (“GHC”)

KDC holds a 49% indirect voting rights in GHC, which is a limited liability company in which Vocarimex 
has significant influence, incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 
0300832672 issued by the DPI of Ho Chi Minh City on 9 September 2008 and the subsequent amended BRCs. 
Its current principal activities are to manufacturing vegetable oils, plant and animal fats. The registered head 
office of Golden Hope Nha Be is located at No. 370, Quarter No. 2, Go O Moi, Phu Thuan Ward, District 7,  
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam. 

Jointly controlled entities

Lavenue Investment Corporation (“Lavenue”)

KDC holds a 50% equity interest in Lavenue, which is a shareholding company incorporated under the Law on 
Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the BRC No. 0310306044 issued by the DPI of HCM City on 10 September 
2010. The principal activity of Lavenue is to operate in the real estate industry. The registered office of Lavenue 
is located at 3rd Floor, May Flower Tower, No. 12 Le Thanh Ton, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

Dabaco Food Processing Joint Stock Company (“Dabaco Food”)

KDC holds a 50% equity interest in Dabaco Food (formerly known as Dabaco Food Processing Company 
Limited), which is a joint stock company incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to 
the BRC No. 2300345626 issued by the DPI of Bac Ninh Province on 4 September 2008 and the subsequent 
amended BRCs. Its principal activities are to process and preserve meat and meat products. Dabaco Food’s 
registered head office is located at Nam Vien, Lac Ve Commune, Tien Du District, Bac Ninh Province.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Applied accounting standards and system 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group, expressed in Vietnam dong (“VND”), are prepared in 
accordance with Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by 
the Ministry of Finance as per the:

 9 Decision No. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Four 
Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 1);

 9 Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six 
Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 2); 

 9 Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six 
Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 3); 

 9 Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six Vietnamese 
Accounting Standards (Series 4); and

 9 Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Four 
Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 5).

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, including their utilization are not 
designed for those who are not informed about Vietnam’s accounting principles, procedures and practices 
and furthermore are not intended to present the consolidated financial position and consolidated results of 
operations and consolidated cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally 
accepted in countries other than Vietnam.

2.2 Applied accounting documentation system 

The Group’s applied accounting documentation system is the General Journal system. 

2.3 Fiscal year

The Group’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its consolidated financial statements starts on 1 
January and ends on 31 December.

2.4 Accounting currency

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in VND which is also the Group’s accounting currency.

2.5 Basis of consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company (“the parent 
company”) and the financial statements of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains 
control, and continues to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, 
using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-company balances, income and expenses and unrealized gains or losses result from intra-company 
transactions are eliminated in full. 

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group and are 
presented separately in the consolidated income statement and within equity in the consolidated balance 
sheet, separately from parent shareholders’ equity.

Impact of change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is recorded to the account 
of undistributed earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) B09-DN/HNB09-DN/HN

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks, cash in transit and short-term, highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of less than three months that are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

3.2 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and 
condition, and net realizable value. 

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs to complete and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The perpetual method is used to record inventories, which are valued as follows:

Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale.  9 actual cost on a weighted average basis.

Finished goods and work in process.  9 cost of direct materials and labor plus attributable 
overhead based on the normal level of activities.

Provision for obsolete inventories

An inventory provision is created for the estimated loss arising due to the impairment (through diminution, 
damage, obsolescence, etc.) of raw materials, finished goods, and other inventories owned by the Group, 
based on appropriate evidence of impairment available at the balance sheet date. Increases and decreases to 
the provision balance are recorded into the cost of goods sold account in the consolidated income statement.  

3.3 Receivables

Receivables are presented in the consolidated financial statements at the carrying amounts due from 
customers and other debtors, after provision for doubtful receivables.

The provision for doubtful receivables represents amounts of outstanding receivables at the balance sheet 
date which are doubtful of being recovered. Increases and decreases to the provision balance are recorded 
into general and administration expense account in the consolidated income statement.

3.4 Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing 
the tangible fixed asset to working condition for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the carrying amount of the assets and 
expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred. 

When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal (the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the consolidated income statement

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of preparing the 
intangible asset for its intended use. 

Expenditures for additions, improvements are added to the carrying amount of the assets and other 
expenditures are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred. 

When intangible assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal (the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

Land use rights are recorded as intangible assets representing the value of the right to use the lands acquired 
or leased by the Group. The useful lives of land use rights are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Accordingly, 
land use rights with finite lives representing the land lease are amortized over the term of lease while the land 
use rights with indefinite useful lives are not amortized.

The advance payment for land rental, of which the land lease contracts have effectiveness prior to 2003 and 
land use right certificate being issued, are recorded as intangible asset according to Circular No. 45/2013/
TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance on 25 April 2013 guiding the management, use and depreciation of 
fixed assets (“Circular 45”).

3.6 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets are calculated on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

Buildings and structures 3 - 46 years

Machinery and equipment 5 - 25 years

Means of transportation 6 - 10 years

Office equipment 3 - 5 years

Brand name 10 - 20 years

Land use rights 10 - 46 years

Computer software 3 - 12 years

Customer relationship 16 - 20 years

Land lease advantage 16 - 32 years

3.7 Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at cost including transaction costs less accumulated depreciation and/or 
amortization. 

Subsequent expenditure relating to an investment property that has already been recognized is added to the 
net book value of the investment property when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the 
originally assessed standard of performance of the existing investment property, will flow to the Group.

Depreciation and amortization of investment properties are calculated on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

Buildings & structures 16 years

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment 
properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) B09-DN/HNB09-DN/HN

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7 Investment properties (continued)

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by 
ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction 
or development. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when, there is change in use, 
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale. 
The transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories does not change the cost 
or the carrying value of the property for subsequent accounting at the date of change in use.

3.8 Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents tangible fixed assets under construction and is stated at cost. This includes 
costs of construction of plant, installation of equipment and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not 
depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into use.

3.9 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
the fund and are recorded as expense during the period in which they are incurred except to the extent that 
they are capitalised as explained in the following paragraph.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of 
the cost of the respective asset.

3.10 Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the consolidated balance 
sheet and amortized over the period for which the amounts are paid or the period in which economic benefits 
are generated in relation to these expenses.

Business advantage

Business advantages is the value generated from the operation of a State-Owned General Corporation from the 
date of establishment to the date of revaluation of assets and equitization, which is determined in accordance 
with Circular No. 127/2014/TT-BTC (“Circular 127”) issued by the Ministry of Finance dated 5 September 2014. 
The business advantages value was finalized in the year 2015 in accordance with the Equitization Finalization 
Minutes dated 22 December 2015. Business advantage is amortized to the consolidated income statement on 
a straight line basis over the period not exceeding 3-year.

Prepaid land rental

Prepaid land rental represents the unamortized balances of advanced payments made in accordance with 
lease contract for a period from 30 to 45 years. Such prepaid rental is recognized as a long-term prepaid 
expense for allocation to the consolidated income statement over the remaining lease period according to 
Circular 45.

3.11 Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is measured 
as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date 
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and 
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair values at the date of 
business combination.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Business combination and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the 
Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. If 
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is 
recognized directly in the consolidated income statement. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at 
cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization of goodwill is calculated on a straight-line basis over ten 
(10) years during which the source embodying economic benefits are recovered by the Group. The parent 
company conducts the periodical review for impairment of goodwill of investment in subsidiaries. If there are 
indicators of impairment loss incurred is higher than the yearly allocated amount of goodwill on the straight-
line basis, the higher amount will be recorded in the consolidated income statement.

3.12 Investments

Investment in associates

The Group’s investment in its associates is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. An associate 
is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture. 
The Group generally deems they have significant influence if they have at least 20% of the voting rights.

Under the equity method, the investment is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus post 
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates. Goodwill arising on acquisition of 
the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Goodwill is not amortized and subject to 
annual review for impairment. The consolidated income statement reflects the share of the post-acquisition 
results of operation of the associate. 

The share of post-acquisition profit (loss) of the associates is presented on the face of the consolidated income 
statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in reserves. The cumulative 
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividend or profit 
sharing received or receivable from associates reduce the carrying amount of the investment. 

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period and use the same 
accounting policies as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in 
line with those of the Group.

Investment in jointly controlled entities

The Group’s investment in jointly controlled entity is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. 
Under the equity method, the investment is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus post joint 
venture changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the jointly controlled entity. The consolidated income 
statement reflects the share of the post-acquisition results of operation of the jointly controlled entity.

The share of profit (loss) of the jointly controlled entities is presented on face of the consolidated income 
statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in reserves. The cumulative 
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividend or profit 
sharing received or receivable from jointly controlled entity reduces the carrying amount of the investment.

The financial statements of the jointly controlled entity are prepared for the same reporting period and use 
the same accounting policies as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting 
policies in line with those of the Group.

Held-for-trading securities and investment in another entity

Held-for-trading securities and investment in another entity are stated at their acquisition costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12 Investments (continued)

Provision for held-for-trading securities and investment in another entity

Provision for any diminution in value of the held-for-trading securities and investment in capital of other 
entities at the balance sheet date is made in accordance with the guidance under Circular No. 228/2009/TT-
BTC dated 7 December 2009 and Circular No. 89/2013/TT-BTC dated 28 June 2013 issued by the Ministry of 
Finance. Increases and decreases to the provision balance are recorded into finance expense account in the 
consolidated income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments 

Held-to-maturity investments are stated at their acquisition costs. After initial recognition, held-to-maturity 
investments are measured at recoverable amount. Any impairment loss incurred is recognized as expense in 
the consolidated financial statements and deducted against the value of such investments.

3.13 Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, 
whether or not billed to the Group.

3.14 Accrual for severance pay

The severance pay to employee is accrued at the end of each reporting period for all employees who have 
been in service for more than 12 months up to 31 December 2008 at the rate of one-half of the average 
monthly salary for each year of service up to 31 December 2008 in accordance with the Labor Code and 
related implementing guidance. The average monthly salary used in this calculation will be revised at the end 
of each reporting period following the average monthly salary of the 6-month period up to the reporting date. 
Increases and decreases to the accrued amount other than actual payment to employee will be taken to the 
consolidated income statement.

This accrued severance pay is used to settle the termination allowance to be paid to employee upon 
termination of their labor contracts following Article 48 of the Labor Code.

3.15 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s reporting currency of VND are recorded at the actual 
transaction exchange rates at transaction dates which are determined as follows:

 9  Transactions resulting in receivables are recorded at the buying exchange rates of the commercial banks 
designated for collection; and

 9  Transactions resulting in liabilities are recorded at the selling exchange rates of the commercial banks 
designated for payment.

At the end of the year, monetary balances denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the actual 
transaction exchange rates at the balance sheet date which are determined as follows: 

 9  Monetary assets are translated at buying exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Group conducts 
transactions regularly; and

 9  Monetary liabilities are translated at selling exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Group 
conducts transactions regularly.

All exchange differences incurred during the year and arising from the revaluation of monetary accounts 
denominated in foreign currency at year-end are taken to the consolidated income statement.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.16 Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired by the Group (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and 
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss upon purchase, sale, re-issue or cancellation 
of the Group’s own equity instruments.

3.17 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit after tax for the year attributable to ordinary 
shareholders (after adjusting for the bonus and welfare fund) by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the Group (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the potential dilutive ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

3.18 Segment information

A segment is a component determined separately by the Group which is engaged in providing products or 
related services (business segment) or providing products or services in a particular economic environment 
(geographical segment), that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments.

3.19 Appropriation of net profit

Net profit after tax is available for appropriation to shareholders after approval in the shareholders’ meeting, 
and after making appropriation to the reserve funds in accordance with the Company’s charter and Vietnamese 
regulatory requirements.

The Group maintains the following reserve funds which are appropriated from its net profit after tax as 
proposed by the Board of Directors and subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting:

Investment and development fund

This fund is set aside for use in the Group’s expansion of its operations or in-depth investments. 

Bonus and welfare fund

This fund is set aside for the purpose of pecuniary rewarding and encouragement, common benefits and 
improvement of the employees’ benefits, and presented as a liability on the consolidated balance sheet.

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are classified as a separate allocation of undistributed 
earnings within the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet, until they have been approved by the 
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and the authority. When these dividends have been approved by 
the shareholders and declared, they are recognized as a liability in the consolidated balance sheet.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, excluding trade discount, rebate and sales return. The following specific recognition criteria must 
also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the 
buyer, usually upon the delivery of the goods.

Rendering of services

Revenue is recognized when service is rendered and completed.

Interest

Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the asset) unless 
collectability is in doubt.

Dividends

Income is recognized when the Group’s entitlement as an investor to receive dividends is established.

3.21 Taxation

Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted as at the balance sheet date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to 
items recognized directly to equity, in which case it is also dealt with in the equity account.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the Group to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the Group intends to settle its current tax assets 
and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between 
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purpose. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

 9 where deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which 
at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

 9 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, 
and interests in joint ventures where timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled 
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.21 Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit and 
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible 
temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

 9 where deferred tax asset in respect of deductible temporary difference which arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability which at the time of the related transaction, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

 9 in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, 
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that 
the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profits will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of deferred tax 
asset to be utilized. Previously unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date 
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred 
tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted at the balance 
sheet date. 

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to items 
recognized directly to equity, in which case it is also dealt with in the equity account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the Group to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or when the Group intends to either settle current tax 
liabilities and assets on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future 
year in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

3.22 RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related parties of the group if one party has the ability to control the other party 
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions, or when the 
group and other party are under common control or under common significant influence. Related parties can 
be enterprise or individual, including close members of the family of any such individual.
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4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL 

4.1 Acquisition of Vietnam Vegetable Oils Industry Corporation (“Vocarimex”)

On 22 May 2017, the Group acquired additional 32,886,000 shares of Vocarimex for a consideration of VND 
1,093,935,179,814, after deducting dividend from pre-acquisition retained earnings of VND 62,118,000,000, 
equivalent to 27% ownership in Vocarimex. Accordingly, the ownership interest of the Group in Vocarimex 
increases from 24% to 51% as at this date and Vocarimex became the Group’s subsidiary.

The provisional fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Vocarimex as at the acquisition date were 
as follows:

Provisional fair value 
recognized on acquisition

VND

Assets

Investments 1,432,086,260,796

Inventories 319,854,276,826

Property, plant and equipment 262,251,553,307

Trade receivables 255,554,076,838

Construction in progress 219,656,049,620

Cash and cash equivalents 147,458,564,481

Intangible assets 6,978,789,927

Investment property 5,588,908,507

Other current assets 51,502,110,502

Other long-term assets 55,213,097,217

2,756,143,688,021

Liabilities

Current liabilities 220,541,587,255

Short-term loans 603,252,259,588

Non-current liabilities 474,327,000

824,268,173,843

Non-controlling interests 72,452,823,511

Total net assets 1,859,422,690,667

Total net assets acquired, 51% 948,305,572,240

Dividend from pre-acquisition retained earnings paid to the parent (62,118,000,000)

Goodwill arising on acquisition 981,664,807,574

Consideration 1,867,852,379,814

In which:

Fair value of the initial investment of 24% at the acquisition date to obtain control (*) 836,035,200,000

Additional consideration, 27% 1,031,817,179,814

(*)The difference of VND 244,902,635,687 between the fair value of initial investment of 24% at the acquisition 
date and the carrying amount using the equity method of accounting has been recognised to the account 
of finance income in the consolidated income statement (Note 20.2).

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

4.1 Acquisition of Vietnam Vegetable Oils Industry Corporation (“Vocarimex”) (continued)

From the date of acquisition, Vocarimex has contributed revenue and net profit before tax to the revenue and 
net profit before tax of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 by VND 1,177,861,662,352 and VND 
148,222,201,670, respectively.

The accounting recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 
was based on a provisional assessment of fair values of Vocarimex’s net assets as the Group is seeking an 
independent valuation. Accordingly, the result of this valuation has not been received at the date of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

In addition, on 22 May 2017, Vocarimex has a subsidiary and three associates which are Vegetable Oils Packing 
Joint Stock Company, Cai Lan Oils & Fats Industries Co., Ltd., LG Vina Cosmetics Company Limited and Golden 
Hope Nha Be Edible Oils Co., Ltd. in which voting rights of Vocarimex in these companies are 51.05%, 24%, 
40% and 49%, respectively. Accordingly, the said subsidiary and three associates became the Group’s indirect 
subsidiary and associates from the acquisition date.

4.2 Acquisition of Tuong An Vegetable Oil Joint Stock Company (“Tuong An”) in 2016

Fair value recognized 
on acquisition

VND

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 14,733,059,557

Investments 336,000,000,000

Accounts receivable 88,501,433,301

Inventories 573,356,820,995  

Tangible fixed assets 167,068,199,894

Intangible assets 733,382,219,816

Construction in progress 2,165,436,275

Other assets 366,900,265,761

2,282,107,435,599

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 325,352,054,233

Short-term loans 399,983,042,353

Non-current liabilities 12,230,897,222

Deferred tax liabilities 216,654,792,919

954,220,786,727

Total net assets 1,327,886,648,872

Total net assets acquired, 65% 863,126,321,767

Dividend from pre-acquisition retained earnings paid to the parent (20,962,337,391)

Goodwill arising on acquisition 151,813,429,131

Consideration 993,977,413,507
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4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

4.2 Acquisition of Tuong An Vegetable Oil Joint Stock Company (“Tuong An”) in 2016 (continued)

The net assets recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2016 were based on a provisional assessment of fair value as the Group had sought an independent valuation 
for the tangible fixed assets, land use right, land lease advantages, customer relationship and brand name 
owned by Tuong An. The results of this valuation had not been received at the date the 2016 consolidated 
financial statements were approved for issued by the Group’s management.

The valuation of the net assets of Tuong An was completed on 26 July 2017 and showed that the fair value 
at the date of acquisition was determined at VND 1,327,886,848,872, an increase of VND 866,619,171,674 
compared with the provisional value. This difference represented the increases in tangible fixed assets of VND 
38,811,955,671 and intangible assets including the land use right, the land lease advantages, the customer 
relationship and the brand name of VND 727,615,200, VND 321,341,773,906, VND 275,772,534,057 and 
VND 446,620,085,759, respectively. As a result, there was an increase in the deferred tax liability of 
VND 216,654,792,919 and an increase in non-controlling interests of VND 303,316,710,086. There was also a 
corresponding reduction in goodwill of VND 563,302,461,588 resulting in a goodwill arising on the acquisition 
of VND 151,813,429,131. The 2016 comparative information has been restated to reflect these adjustments. 
The increased depreciation charge on these tangible fixed assets, intangible assets from the acquisition date 
to 31 December 2016 was VND 5,983,942,158 and has been recognized in the consolidated financial statement 
for the year then ended.

4.3 Additional acquisition of partial interest in Tuong An through Vocarimex

On 22 May 2017, Vocarimex holds a 27.87% voting rights in Tuong An, which is an associate of Vocarimex. 
Tuong An is also a subsidiary of the Group with a 65% voting rights in 2016. Accordingly, the ownership 
interest of the Group in Tuong An increases from 65% to 79.21%.

The impact of change in the ownership interest in Tuong An arising from the above transaction has been 
recognised to the account of undistributed earnings at an amount of VND 58,700,582,787 in the consolidated 
balance sheet in accordance with Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 issued by the 
Ministry of Finance, providing guidance on preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements 
(Note 19.1).

4.4 Disposal of partial interest in Tuong An

On 5 October 2017, Tuong An has completed the issuance of 1,613,316 new shares to its key executive in 
accordance with the Employee Stock Ownership Plan program approved by the 2017 Extraordinary General 
Meeting Resolution dated 10 February 2017. Accordingly, the ownership interest of the Group in Tuong An 
decreased from 79.81% to 75.44%.

The impact of change in the ownership interest in Tuong An arising from the above transaction has been 
decreased to the accounts of undistributed earnings and goodwill at an amount of VND 27,555,694,311 
(Note 19.1) and VND 8,071,413,982, respectively in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with Circular 
No. 202/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance, providing guidance on 
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements.

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

4.5 Disposal of partial interest in KIDO Frozen Foods Joint Stock Company (“KDF”) 

On 17 April 2017, the Group has completed the transfer of 11,200,000 shares, equivalent to 20% equity interest 
in KDF to the investors under the shares purchase registration agreements. The transfer reduced the ownership 
interest of the Group in KDF from 99.8% to 79.8%. 

In addition, on 25 August 2017, the Group has completed the transfer of 8,288,000 shares, equivalent to 14.8% 
equity interest in KDF to its employees and strategic investors under the share transfer agreements. The 
transfer reduced the ownership interest of the Group in KDF from 79.8% to 65%.

Accordingly, the gains of VND 563,581,971,271 after deducting current income tax expense of VND 
131,914,762,351 and the impact of change in other owner’s capital of VND 55,680,000,000 from the said transfer 
has been recognised as an addition to undistributed earnings in the consolidated balance sheet (Note 19.1).

4.6 Deemed full disposals of equity interests in Tan An Phuoc Company Limited (“TAP”)

In 2017, the Group completed the transfer of 80% equity interests in TAP to Southern Salt Group Joint Stock 
Company (“Southern Salt”) and individuals, as approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with Board 
Resolution No. 158/NQ-HDQT dated 10 July 2017. Accordingly, the Group no longer has a control over TAP.

Total sale price of VND 438,200,000,000 from the said transfer was agreed by the Group , Southern Salt and 
individuals. Accordingly, the gain of VND 42,160,162,856 from the transfer was recognized in the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. 
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4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

4.7 Goodwill

Goodwill is amortized on a straight line basis over ten (10) years from acquisition date. Details were as follows: 

COST VND

Beginning balance

As previously reported 717,763,208,648

Impact of restatements (Note 4.2) (563,302,461,588)

As restated – Note 30 154,460,747,060

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 4.1) 981,664,807,574 

Decrease due to partial disposal of a subsidiary (8,790,794,400)

Ending balance 1,127,334,760,234 

Accumulated amortization

Beginning balance

As previously reported 8,606,617,018

Impact of restatements (4,694,187,180)

As restated – Note 30 3,912,429,838

Amortization for the year 72,224,993,882 

Decrease due to partial disposal of a subsidiary (719,380,418)

Ending balance 75,418,043,302 

Net carrying amount

Beginning balance – as restated – Note 30 150,548,317,222 

Ending balance 1,051,916,716,932 

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

VND

Ending balance Beginning 
balance

Cash on hand 2,936,579,891 1,473,358,888 

Cash in banks 259,217,890,153 163,860,908,395 

Cash equivalents 1,545,530,000,000 1,518,003,508,294 

TOTAL 1,807,684,470,044    1,683,337,775,577 

Cash equivalents represented term deposits at the commercial banks with the original maturity of less than 
three (3) months and earned the interest at the rates ranging from 5.0% to 5.5% per annum.

6. CURRENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

VND

Ending balance Beginning 
balance

Short-term trade receivables 654,283,740,094 406,023,133,056 

In which:

Due from related parties (Note 28) 63,361,832,836 3,983,439 

Dat Toan Phu Company Limited 125,886,026,142 157,381,334,279 

Dat Toan Phat Company Limited 81,730,941,961 103,214,102,460 

Other customers 383,304,939,155  145,423,712,878 

Short-term advances to suppliers 87,223,962,159 74,347,949,755

In which:

Quoc Thuan Phat Company Limited 58,121,348,903 64,221,407,955 

Dai Tan Viet Joint Stock Company 17,412,422,500 - 

Other suppliers 11,690,190,756 10,126,541,800

Short-term loan receivables - TRIBECO Binh Duong Company Limited 8,000,000,000 8,000,000,000 

Other short-term receivables 359,259,750,288 1,477,765,348,246 

In which:

Advance for investment in targeted shares (*) 176,638,400,000 1,332,746,591,000 

Receivables from disposal of an investment 99,320,000,000 112,675,000,000

Interest receivable 22,236,840,559 15,066,402,780

Employees’ advances 33,863,956,000 -

Others 27,200,553,729 17,277,354,466

In which:

Due from related parties (Note 28) 177,117,566,666 1,222,639,391,000 

Due from third parties 182,142,183,622 255,125,957,246

Provision for doubtful short-term receivables (42,505,147,499) (11,645,905,547)

NET 1,066,262,305,042 1,954,490,525,510
       

(*) This ending balance represents the advances made to Rong Viet Securities Corporation (“VDS”) for the 
acquisition of the targeted shares.

The short-term trade receivables of the Group with carrying amount of VND 175,608,649,478 were placed as 
collateral for the Group’s short-term loans from the bank (Note 18.1).
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6. CURRENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

 Details of movement of provision for doubtful short-term receivables:
VND

Current year Previous year

Beginning balance 11,645,905,547 22,916,962,863

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary 5,693,937,673 -

Provision created during the year 25,784,589,976 11,645,905,547

Utilization and reversal of provision during the year (619,285,697) (22,916,962,863)

Ending balance 42,505,147,499 11,645,905,547

7. INVENTORIES
VND

Ending balance Beginning 
balance

Raw materials 378,042,809,966 433,462,737,554

Finished goods 187,333,693,253 161,414,040,613

Work in process 55,470,754,164 49,445,059,020

Goods in transit 102,107,633,225 5,667,859,791

Tools and supplies 27,260,574,722 22,440,699,391

Merchandise goods 276,501,134,312 5,577,904,169

TOTAL 1,026,716,599,642 678,008,300,538

Provision for obsolete inventories (4,184,536,341) (10,041,210,634)

NET 1,022,532,063,301 667,967,089,904 

The inventories of the Group with a value of VND 76,684,927,647 were placed as collateral for the Group’s short-term loans 
from the bank (Note 18.1). 

Details of movement of provision for obsolete inventories:
VND

Current year Previous year

Beginning balance 10,041,210,634 499,859,297

Provision created during the year 4,346,017,156 8,309,967,302

Utilization and reversal of provision during the year (10,802,691,449) (1,894,082,147)

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary 600,000,000 3,125,466,182

Ending balance 4,184,536,341 10,041,210,634

8. PREPAID EXPENSES
VND

Ending balance 
Beginning 

balance

Short-term 19,090,092,483 13,568,506,662

Tools and equipment 10,744,124,634 4,152,375,224

Maintenance expenses 2,568,612,056 -

Insurance fees 854,964,820 5,811,831,560

Rental fees - 1,456,312,379

Others 4,922,390,973 2,147,987,499

Long-term 181,904,660,348 141,883,545,324

Prepaid land rental 146,761,329,800 117,852,461,261

Tools and equipment 16,755,768,666 18,345,761,246

Business advantage 13,756,078,297 -

Others 4,631,483,585 5,685,322,817

TOTAL 200,994,752,831 155,452,051,986

The land use rights of the Group with carrying amounts of VND 15,448,568,697 and VND  45,003,262,201 were 
placed as collateral for the Group’s short-term loans (Note 18.1) and long-term loans (Note 18.2) from the bank, 
respectively.

9. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
VND

Ending balance 
Beginning 

balance

Long-term advance to supplier

Advance for office rental to Hoang Trieu Co., Ltd. 17,304,707,562 18,454,707,562

Other long-term receivables

Receivable from disposal of an investment 85,484,438,836 -

Long-term deposits 15,136,694,237 9,351,462,068

TOTAL 117,925,840,635 27,806,169,630
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10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Buildings
and structures

Machinery 
and equipment

Means of 
transportation

Office 
equipment Other Total

Cost

Beginning balance

As previously reported 427,142,159,331 792,729,469,098 135,832,718,594 30,104,430,153 - 1,385,808,777,176

Impact of restatements (Note 4.2) 758,070,035 37,412,926,605 732,188,551 (91,229,520) - 38,811,955,671

As restated - Note 30 427,900,229,366 830,142,395,703 136,564,907,145 30,013,200,633 - 1,424,620,732,847

New purchase 34,487,920,364 56,718,532,947 21,132,340,275 3,700,790,757 - 116,039,584,343 

Transfer from construction in progress 93,307,957,749 132,299,932,479 2,470,949,209 - 17,740,091,147 245,818,930,584 

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary 193,518,985,298 368,096,047,640 9,362,090,433 4,635,300,162 1,860,415,250 577,472,838,783 

Reclassification 1,744,682,003 - - - - 1,744,682,003

Disposal during the year (1,173,245,052) (24,923,793,201) (2,530,932,812) (256,280,000) - (28,884,251,065)

Ending balance 749,786,529,728 1,362,333,115,568 166,999,354,250 38,093,011,552 19,600,506,397 2,336,812,517,495 

In which:

Fully depreciated 49,431,479,148 202,536,783,914 30,650,611,255 15,448,372,340 674,955,402 298,742,202,059

Accumulated depreciation

Beginning balance

As previously reported 137,554,147,520 381,491,015,900 61,648,483,953 18,989,490,270 - 599,683,137,643

Impact of restatements 500,872,554 1,506,995,415 36,176,222 (3,239,476) - 2,040,804,715

As restated - Note 30 138,055,020,074 382,998,011,315 61,684,660,175 18,986,250,794 - 601,723,942,358

Depreciation for the year 39,107,338,350 101,115,188,096 17,980,848,719 4,005,281,448 718,719,500 162,927,376,113 

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary 76,034,579,451 226,715,041,718 8,062,183,539 3,498,889,474 910,591,294 315,221,285,476 

Reclassification 1,744,682,003 - - - - 1,744,682,003

Disposal during the year (1,082,300,934) (20,179,642,401) (2,202,642,993) (243,583,205) - (23,708,169,533)

Ending balance 253,859,318,944 690,648,598,728 85,525,049,440 26,246,838,511 1,629,310,794 1,057,909,116,417 

Net carrying amount

Beginning balance – as restated - Note 30 289,845,209,292 447,144,384,388 74,880,246,970 11,026,949,839 - 822,896,790,489 

Ending balance 495,927,210,784 671,684,516,840 81,474,304,810 11,846,173,041 17,971,195,603 1,278,903,401,078 

The buildings and structures, machinery and equipment and office equipment of the Group with carrying 
amounts of VND 212,223,092,867, VND 599,029,626,744 and VND 12,900,327,000 were placed as collateral for 
the Group’s short-term loans (Note 18.1) and long-term loans (Note 18.2) from the banks, respectively.

VND
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
VND

Brand  
name 

Land use  
rights

Computer  
software

Customer  
relationship Land lease advantage Total

Cost

Beginning balance

As previously reported 16,591,966,348 363,672,572,381 54,227,663,222 22,587,790,774 - 457,079,992,725

Impact of restatements (Note 4.2) 446,620,085,759 727,615,200 - 275,772,534,057 321,341,773,906 1,044,462,008,922

As restated - Note 30 463,212,052,107 364,400,187,581 54,227,663,222 298,360,324,831 321,341,773,906 1,501,542,001,647

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary - 9,747,217,260 2,884,296,490 - - 12,631,513,750 

New purchase - - 2,857,916,052 - - 2,857,916,052 

Transferred from construction in progress - - 2,549,426,476 - - 2,549,426,476

Decrease due to disposal of a subsidiary - (350,000,000,000) - - - (350,000,000,000)

Ending balance 463,212,052,107 24,147,404,841 62,519,302,240 298,360,324,831 321,341,773,906 1,169,580,857,925 

In which:

Fully amortized - 3,409,939,531 9,601,260,050 - - 13,011,199,581 

Accumulated amortization

Beginning balance

As previously reported 9,955,179,809 3,558,070,378 27,904,638,125 8,470,421,539 - 49,888,309,851

Impact of restatements (Note 4.2) 1,860,917,024 - - 1,149,052,225 933,168,194 3,943,137,443

As restated - Note 30 11,816,096,833 3,558,070,378 27,904,638,125 9,619,473,764 933,168,194 53,831,447,294

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary - 2,768,427,333 2,884,296,490 - - 5,652,723,823 

Amortization for the year 23,990,200,923 105,285,952 6,286,100,973 15,200,363,626 11,198,018,328 56,779,969,802 

Ending balance 35,806,297,756 6,431,783,663 37,075,035,588 24,819,837,390 12,131,186,522 116,264,140,919 

Net carrying amount

Beginning balance – as restated – Note 30 451,395,955,274 360,842,117,203 26,323,025,097 288,740,851,067 320,408,605,712 1,447,710,554,353

Ending balance 427,405,754,351 17,715,621,178 25,444,266,652 273,540,487,441 309,210,587,384 1,053,316,717,006 

The land use right of the Group with carrying amounts of VND 5,605,685,948 was placed as collateral for the 
Group’s short-term loans (Note 18.1) from the bank.

VND
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12. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

Installation of machinery 17,226,812,153 14,942,594,328

Construction of new plants 40,000,000  15,556,141,796

Warehouse and canteen 4,124,553,500 12,131,555,667

Software development - 6,975,639,040

Others 947,742,313 1,588,798,890

TOTAL 22,339,107,966 51,194,729,721

The Group has pledged the assets to be formed in future estimated at VND 4,778,830,490 and VND 
10,784,059,663 as collateral for the Group’s short-term loans (Note 18.1) and long-term loans (Note 18.2) from 
the banks, respectively.

13. INVESTMENTS

13.1 Short-term investments

Ending balance Beginning balance

Number Amount
VND

Number Amount
VND

Held-for-trading securities, net 399,729,351 3,503,729,901

Listed shares 19,589 401,120,064 129,601 3,949,434,564

Provision for diminution in value of 
held-for-trading securities

(1,390,713) (445,704,663)

Held-to-maturity investments 1,375,455,873,731 650,000,000,000

Short-term deposits at Vietnam Export 
Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank

650,000,000,000 650,000,000,000

Short-term deposits at Bank 
forInvestment andDevelopment 
ofVietnam (“BIDV”)

203,000,000,000 -

Short-term deposits at Saigon Thuong 
Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank

190,955,873,731 -

Short-term deposits at Maritimebank 80,000,000,000 -

Bond Certificate of Rong Viet Securities 
Corporation (“VDS”) (Note28)

250,000 250,000,000,000 -

Short-term deposits at Military 
Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“MB”) – 
Thang Long Branch

1,500,000,000 -

NET 1,375,855,603,082 653,503,729,901

13. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

13.2 Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities

Name of associates and  
jointly controlled entities

Carrying value

Interest Ending balance Interest Beginning balance

% VND % VND

Lavenue 50.00 1,072,541,267,105 50.00 1,075,599,228,708

Calofic 24.00 866,813,370,509 - -

LG Vina 40.00 98,479,333,480 - -

Dabaco Food 50.00 94,096,330,516 - -

Phong Thinh Investment Phong Thinh 34.00 2,000,000,000 34.00 2,000,000,000

Vocarimex - - 24.00 557,143,017,306

TOTAL 2,133,930,301,610 1,634,742,246,014
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13. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

13.2 Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

Details of the carrying values of these investments in associates and jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2017 
were as follows:

Lavenue Calofic LG Vina Phong Thinh Vocarimex GHC Dabaco Food Total

Cost of investment

Beginning balance 1,087,500,000,000 - - 2,000,000,000 421,505,599,984 - - 1,511,005,599,984

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary - 572,600,582,675 71,321,827,562 - - 47,192,438,524 - 691,114,848,761 

Addition - - 7,200,000,000 - - - 101,000,000,000 108,200,000,000

Decrease due to 
being a subsidiary

- - - - (421,505,599,984) - - (421,505,599,984)

Ending balance 1,087,500,000,000 572,600,582,675 78,521,827,562 2,000,000,000 - 47,192,438,524 101,000,000,000 1,888,814,848,761 

Accumulated share in post-acquisition profit (loss) of the associates and jointly controlled entities 

Beginning balance (11,900,771,292) - - - 135,637,417,322 - - 123,736,646,030 

Increase (decrease) due to acquisition of a subsidiary - 172,659,565,274 41,804,256,038 - - (47,192,438,524) - 167,271,382,788 

Share in post-acquisition profit (loss) for the year (3,057,961,603) 121,553,222,560 2,642,616,400 - 33,989,547,007 - (6,903,669,484) 148,223,754,880 

Dividend - - (24,489,366,520) - - - - (24,489,366,520)

Decrease due to being a subsidiary - - - - (169,626,964,329) - - (169,626,964,329)

Ending balance (14,958,732,895) 294,212,787,834 19,957,505,918 - - (47,192,438,524) (6,903,669,484) 245,115,452,849 

Carrying amount

Beginning balance 1,075,599,228,708 - - 2,000,000,000 557,143,017,306 - - 1,634,742,246,014

Ending balance 1,072,541,267,105 866,813,370,509 98,479,333,480 2,000,000,000 - - 94,096,330,516 2,133,930,301,610 

VND
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13. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

13.3 Investment in another entity
VND

Name of entity Ending balance Beginning balance

Tan Binh Vegetable Oil Joint Stock Company (Nakydaco) 23,556,550,777 -

14. SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES
VND

Ending balance Beginningbalance

Due to third parties 459,907,219,132 157,460,558,241

Denali Trading Pte Ltd 132,602,704,164 -

Wilmar Trading Pte Ltd 40,988,081,894 -

Others 286,316,433,074 157,460,558,241

Due to related parties (Note 28) 262,394,770 190,974,077,818

TOTAL 460,169,613,902 348,434,636,059

15. STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS
VND

Beginningbalance Increase Decrease Ending balance

Corporate income tax 93,053,474,681 194,934,124,954 (266,300,896,038) 21,686,703,597

Value-added tax 10,144,487 732,971,547,138 (729,059,788,052) 3,921,903,573  

Other taxes 10,257,154,519 69,487,898,594 (66,912,400,463) 12,832,652,650

TOTAL 103,320,773,687 997,393,570,686 (1,062,273,084,553) 38,441,259,820

In which:

Tax overpaid (838,147,151) - - (18,866,931,387)

Tax payables 104,158,920,838 - - 57,308,191,207

16. SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

Marketing expenses 88,598,499,523 70,798,343,979

13th month salary and bonus 13,483,950,275  16,185,629,622

Interest expense 10,449,185,905 10,458,036,289

Consulting fees 4,320,550,098 43,199,629,782

Transportation fees 2,077,266,490 705,379,460

Others 31,786,710,006 5,421,658,808 

TOTAL 150,716,162,297 146,768,677,940

17. OTHER SHORT-TERM PAYABLES
VND

Ending balance Beginning balance
Currency forward contract 99,423,983,854 -

Social, health and unemployment insurance 7,634,694,187 4,325,640,574

Dividends payable 5,209,692,580 5,426,334,300

Payables for equitization 4,030,160,592 -

Others 34,580,611,261  21,186,657,420

TOTAL 150,879,142,474 30,938,632,294

In which:

Payables to related parties (Note 28) 1,975,365,000 -

Others 148,903,777,474 30,938,632,294

18. LOANS 
VND 

Ending balance Beginning balance

Short-term loans

Loans from banks (Note 18.1) 1,027,754,226,683 645,853,690,786

Current portion of long-term bond (Note 18.4) 197,845,000,000 197,845,000,000

Current portion of long-term loans (Notes 18.2 and 18.3) 65,715,540,058 -

1,291,314,766,741 843,698,690,786

Long-term loans

Domestic straight bonds (Note 18.4) 593,792,421,762 791,639,780,822

Loans from banks (Note 18.2) 259,254,841,749 206,314,241,034

Long-term loan from another entit (Note 18.3) 11,640,000,573 -

864,687,264,084 997,954,021,856

TOTAL 2,156,002,030,825 1,841,652,712,642

  Movements of loans are as follows:
VND

Short-term loans Long-term loans

Beginning balance 843,698,690,786 997,954,021,856

Drawdown of borrowings 4,107,098,553,007 14,309,492,000 

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary 434,909,983,541 168,342,276,047 

Transfer of current portion of long-term loans 265,715,540,058 (265,715,540,058)

Allocation of bond issuance expenses - 2,152,640,940 

Foreign exchange difference arising from revaluation of ending 
balance denominated in foreign currencies

- (30,532,667)

Repayment of borrowings (4,360,108,000,651) (52,325,094,034)

Ending balance 1,291,314,766,741 864,687,264,084 
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18. LOANS (CONTINUED)

18.1 Short-term loans from banks

Short-term loans from banks are to finance for working capital requirements. Details are as follows:

Bank
Ending balance

VND
Interest rate

% p.a. Maturity date Collateral

Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade

Bank loan 1 236,522,661,034 4.8 – 5.5 From 10 February 2018 to 20 March 2018 Unsecured

Bank loan 2 129,204,631,030 3.0 – 5.0 From 5 February 2018 to 7 March 2018 Unsecured

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam (“VCB”)

Bank loan 1 312,110,020,306 5.0 – 7.0 From 17 February 2018 to 15 March 2018 Unsecured

Bank loan 2 84,040,949,377 5.2 – 5.3 From 17 February 2018 to 1 March 2018 Unsecured

Bank loan 3 12,508,139,523 7.0 – 8.0 From 14 August 2018 to 11 December 2018 Office equipment with carrying amount of 
VND 12,900,327,000 (Note 10)  

Bank loan 4 7,699,376,078 5.2 8 May 2018 Unsecured  

Military commercial joint stock bank (“MB”) – 
Ho Chi Minh Branch

125,564,131,862 5.4 – 5.8 From 6 January 2018 to 29 June 2018 Buildings and structures, machinery and equipment belong to ice-cream and yogurt production line (Phu Dong Project) valued 
at VND 56,943,360,736 and VND 133,336,620,854, respectively (Note 10); construction in progress amounting to VND 4,778,830,490 
(Note 12); land use right and assets on land at Tay Bac Cu Chi Industrial Zone with carrying amount of VND 15,448,568,697 (Note 8); 

inventories at Cu Chi warehouse valued at VND 76,684,927,647 (Note 7); account receivables amounting to 
VND 175,608,649,478 (Note 6)    

Vietnam International Bank 59,968,250,250 6.0 From 14 March 2018 to 11 April 2018 Unsecured

Bank for Investment and Development of 
Vietnam – Ho Chi Minh City Branch

38,919,143,450 7.0 – 7.6 From 13 July 2018 to 12 December 2018 Land use right with carrying amount of VND 5,605,685,948 at Tan Thoi Hiep Ward, 
District 12, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam (Note 11); machinery and equipment valued at VND 41,291,058,680 (Note 10)

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. - Ho Chi Minh City Branch 18,016,425,602 5.7 – 5.9 From 14 May 2018 to 27 May 2018 Unsecured

Hong Kong and Shanghai Bank Corporation 
(“HSBC”)

3,200,498,171 4.0 27 April 2018 Unsecured 

TOTAL 1,027,754,226,683 
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18. LOANS (CONTINUED) 

18.2 Long-term loans from banks

The Group obtained long-term loans from banks for the purpose of financing its purchase and installation of machineries 
and construction of new plants. Details are as follows:

Bank Ending balance
VND

Interest rate 
% p.a.

Maturity date Collateral

Bank for Investment and Development 
of Vietnam – Ho Chi Minh City Branch

154,090,649,121 9.4 From 12 November 2018 to  
12 November 2024

Machinery and equipment valued at VND 209,232,182,318  
(Note 10) at  Nam Tan Uyen Industrial Zone, Tan Uyen Ward, Binh Duong Province, Vietnam 

Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank–
Ho Chi Minh City Branch

149,689,147,000 6.5 – 7.0 From 12 January 2021 
to 25 October 2021

Buildings and structures, machinery and equipment of Bac Ninh Factory valued at VND  155,279,732,131; and VND 136,165,107,355, 
respectively (Note 10), construction in progress amounting to VND 10,517,674,930 (Note 12); and land use rights in VSIP Bac Ninh with 

carrying amount of VND 45,003,262,201 (Note 8)

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for 
Foreign Trade of Vietnam (“VCB”)

12,909,492,000 7.6 From 30 May 2022 
to 31 May 2022

Machinery and equipment; and Construction in progress amounting to VND 27,258,186,043; and VND 266,384,733, respectively 
(Note 12)

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. – Ho Chi Minh City 
Branch

7,300,000,000 6.5 – 7.0 From 26 October 2018 
to 30 December 2018

Machinery and equipment valued at 
VND 51,746,471,494 (Note 10)

TOTAL 323,989,288,121 

In which:

Long-term loans 259,254,841,749 

Current portion of long-term loans 64,734,446,372 
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18. LOANS (CONTINUED)

18.3 Long-term loans from another entity

Bank Ending balance
VND

Interest rate 
% p.a.

Maturity date Collateral

Industrial Urban Development Joint - 
Stock Company No. 2

12,621,094,259
Non-bearing 

interest
From 12 May to 2018 

to 12 May 2028
Unsecured

In which:

Long-term loans 11,640,000,573 

Current portion of long-term loans 981,093,686 

The Group has a non-interest bearing and unsecured borrowings from Industrial Urban Development Joint 
Stock Company No. 2 in relation to a land lease for manufacturing plant located at Nhon Trach II Industrial 
Park, Nhon Trach District, Dong Nai Province according to Contract No. 115/1988/HDTD dated 12 May 1988. 
The Group used the said land lot for capital contribution into LG Vina Cosmetics Company Limited. In addition, 
long-term loans from bank are to finance for carton box factory project at Nam Tan Uyen Industrial Zone,  
Tan Uyen District, Binh Duong Province, Vietnam.

18.4 Domestic straight bonds

Details of these bonds as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:
  

Arrangement organization Date of issuance Amount
VND

Vietnam International Commercial Joint Stock  Bank - District 1 Branch (“VIB”) 18 November 2016 800,000,000,000 

Bond issuance expenses (8,362,578,238)

TOTAL 791,637,421,762 

In which:

Current portion of long-term bond 197,845,000,000

Non-current portion of long-term bond 593,792,421,762 

On 18 November 2016, the Group issued bonds with total value of VND 1,000 billion (the par value per bond 
is VND 1 billion) which was bought by VIB. 

18. LOANS (CONTINUED)

18.4 Domestic straight bonds (continued)

These bonds will be repaid after five (5) years from the date of issuance with an interest rate of 8.5% per 
annum for the first six-month period and the interest rate for the subsequent six-month periods is the average 
interest rate of individual saving deposit in VND with the term of twelve (12) months announced by four banks: 
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam (“VCB”), Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for 
Industry and Trade (“Vietinbank”), Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam 
(“BIDV”) and VIB plus margin of 2.5% per annum. The Company has the obligation to repurchase these bonds 
before maturity date from date of issuance as follows:

 9 minimum 20% of the issued bond value on the date-end of twelve (12)-month period from the issuance date;

 9 minimum 40% of the issued bond value on the date-end of twenty four (24)-month period from the 
issuance date;

 9 minimum 60% of the issued bond value on the date-end of thirty six (36)-month period from the issuance date;

 9 minimum 80% of the issued bond value on the date-end of forty eight (48)-month period from the 
issuance date; and 

 9 the remaining value of issued bond value on the date-end of sixty (60)-month period from the issuance date.

The proceeds from the bonds were used for the purpose of supplementing the Group’s capital for business 
and production activities. As at 31 December 2017, the bonds are owned by VIB.

The bonds are secured by some shares of the Group’s certain subsidiaries.
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19. OWNERS’ EQUITY

19.1 Increase and decrease in owners’ equity
VND

Issued  
share capital Share premium

Otherowners’ 
capital Treasury shares

Investment and 
development fund

Other funds 
belonging to 

owners’ equity

Undistributed  
earnings (As 

restated - Note 30) Total 

Previous year:

Beginning balance 2,566,533,970,000 3,192,083,261,700 - (1,958,652,945,062) 51,162,916,267 15,909,752,661 1,398,947,279,604 5,265,984,235,170

Purchase of treasury shares - - - (831,373,476) - - - (831,373,476)

Net profit for the year - - - - - - 1,176,471,865,617 1,176,471,865,617

Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - (533,373,430) (533,373,430)

Board of Directors’ allowance - - - - - - (11,595,212,483) (11,595,212,483)

Dividends declared - - - - - - (493,586,738,400) (493,586,738,400)

Increase in capital of subsidiary sourced by its 
undistributed earnings

- - 159,680,000,000 - - - (159,680,000,000) -

Ending balance 2,566,533,970,000 3,192,083,261,700 159,680,000,000 (1,959,484,318,538) 51,162,916,267 15,909,752,661 1,910,023,820,908 5,935,909,402,998 
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19. OWNERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED)

19.1 Increase and decrease in owners’ equity (continued)
                           VND

Issued  
share capital Share premium

Other owners’ 
capital Treasury shares

Investment and 
development fund

Other funds 
belonging to owners’ 

equity

Undistributed  
earnings (As restated 

- Note 30) Total 

Current year:

Beginning balance

As previously reported 2,566,533,970,000 3,192,083,261,700 159,680,000,000 (1,959,484,318,538) 51,162,916,267 15,909,752,661 1,908,706,588,263 5,934,592,170,353 

Impact of restatements – Note 30 - - - - - - 1,317,232,645 1,317,232,645 

As restated - Note 30 2,566,533,970,000 3,192,083,261,700 159,680,000,000 (1,959,484,318,538) 51,162,916,267 15,909,752,661 1,910,023,820,908 5,935,909,402,998 

Reissuance of treasury shares - (2,294,200) - 5,808,700 - - - 3,514,500 

Net profit for the year - - - - - - 339,191,934,255 339,191,934,255

Dividends declared - - - - - - (329,057,825,600) (329,057,825,600)

Transferred to investment and development funds - - - - 19,175,272,365 - (19,175,272,365) - 

Transferred to funds - - - - - - (29,587,636,183) (29,587,636,183)

Board of Directors’ allowance - - - - - - (12,263,443,400) (12,263,443,400)

Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - - - - - 58,700,582,787 58,700,582,787 

Disposal of part of interests in subsidiaries - - (55,680,000,000) - - - 459,791,514,609 404,111,514,609 

Other increase - - - - (2,551,127,247) - (200,481,291) (2,751,608,538)

ENDING BALANCE 2,566,533,970,000 3,192,080,967,500 104,000,000,000 (1,959,478,509,838) 67,787,061,385 15,909,752,661 2,377,423,193,720 6,364,256,435,428
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19. OWNERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED)

19.2 Capital transactions with owners 
VND

Current year Previous year

Issued share capital

At the beginning and end of the year 2,566,533,970,000 2,566,533,970,000 

19.3 Shares
Share

Ending balance Beginning balance

Ordinary shares authorized to be issued 256,653,397 256,653,397 

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid 256,653,397 256,653,397 

Treasury shares held by the Group (50,992,256) (50,992,335) 

In which: held by the Company (50,992,256) (50,992,256)

Ordinary outstanding shares 205,661,141 205,661,062 

19.4 Dividends
VND

Current year Previous year

Dividends declared during the year 329,057,825,600 493,586,738,400

Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent company 329,489,247,340 493,745,506,850

19.5 Earnings per share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

Current year Previous year 
(As restated)

Net profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders (VND) 339,191,934,255 1,176,471,865,617

Distribution to bonus and welfare fund (*) (9,666,855,554) (20,000,000,000)

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders for 
basicearnings

329,525,078,701 1,156,471,865,617

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 205,661,115 205,661,062 

Basic earnings per share (Par value: VND 10,000 per share) 1,602 5,623 

Diluted earnings per share (Par value: VND 10,000 per share) 1,602 5,623 

 

19. OWNERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED)

19.5 Earnings per share (continued)

(*)  Net profit used to compute earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 was restated 
following the actual allocation to bonus and welfare funds from 2016 retained earnings as approved in 
the Annual General Meeting’s Resolution dated 16 June 2017.

Net profit used to compute earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 excluded bonus and 
welfare funds which is estimated at 5% of 2017 retained earnings.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the 
reporting date and the date of completion of these consolidated financial statements.

19.6 Non-controlling interests 
VND

Current year Previous year

Beginning balance

As previously reported 271,077,317,170 99,588,031,160

Impact of restatements - Note 30 301,498,349,952 -

As restated - Note 30 572,575,667,122 99,588,031,160

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary 983,569,941,938 464,760,327,105 

Acquisition of shares from non-controlling shareholders in subsidiaries (324,402,497,761) -

Disposal of part of interests in subsidiary to non-controlling interests 322,808,186,458 -

Net profit for the year 100,913,496,596 6,910,439,027 

Disposals of a subsidiary (99,009,959,286) 1,333,373,430

Dividends payable to non-controlling interest (93,408,343,600) (336,503,600)

Transferred to fund (7,359,810,260) -

Board of Directors’ allowance (111,556,600) -

Capital contribution - 320,000,000

Other decrease (2,451,083,041) -

Ending balance 1,453,124,041,566 572,575,667,122 
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20. REVENUES 

20.1 Revenues from sale of goods and rendering of services

VND

Current year Previous year
Gross revenue 7,118,097,737,821 2,272,416,116,876

In which:

Sale of finished goods 6,726,882,989,482 1,932,133,357,111

Sale of merchandise goods 366,162,121,791 339,740,601,173

Others 25,052,626,548  542,158,592

Less (101,772,501,229) (33,640,684,377)

In which:

Sales discounts (24,529,916,555) (17,106,354,538)

Sales returns (77,242,584,674) (16,534,329,839)

NET REVENUE 7,016,325,236,592 2,238,775,432,499

Of which:

Sales to related parties (Note 28) 488,119,456,423 -   

Sales to other customers 6,528,205,780,169 2,238,775,432,499 

20.2 Finance income
VND

Current year Previous year

Gain from disposal of investment 247,436,480,129 1,435,823,509,528

Gain from acquisition of a subsidiary 244,902,635,687 -

Interest income 139,881,165,264 104,419,054,812

Gains from securities investments 1,655,635,500 -

Foreign exchange difference gains 4,972,396,309 7,419,475,750

Others 2,331,259,975 364,207,857

TOTAL 641,179,572,864 1,548,026,247,947

21. COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED 
VND

Current year Previous year

Cost of finished goods sold 5,251,054,730,406 1,054,529,180,835

Cost of merchandise sold 300,187,161,254 301,302,471,763

(Reversal of) provision for obsolete inventories (6,456,674,293) 10,574,789,160 

Others 18,091,133,861 159,027,787

TOTAL 5,562,876,351,228 1,366,565,469,545

22. FINANCE EXPENSES 
VND

Current year Previous year
Loan interest 157,276,630,519 38,641,296,719

Allocation of bond issuance expenses 2,152,640,940 259,780,822 

Foreign exchange difference losses 950,349,886 8,581,216,450

Financial consulting fees - 47,082,548,477

Others 840,627,094 1,144,548,778 

TOTAL 161,220,248,439 95,709,391,246

23. SELLING EXPENSES
VND

Current year Previous year
Labor cost 329,164,140,505 154,415,028,231

Advertising and promotion 254,176,716,608 353,060,523,733

Transportation expenses 173,662,843,596 67,178,779,221

External services 131,202,732,212 95,181,644,675

Depreciation and amortization 57,834,730,454 18,308,266,905 

Others 115,687,039,141   32,803,119,918

TOTAL 1,061,728,202,516 720,947,362,683

24. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
VND

Current year Previous year
Labor cost 168,673,455,881 113,664,540,325 

Depreciation and amortization 106,887,223,222 20,328,607,047 

External services 91,843,478,541 74,563,922,442 

Maintenance and rental fees 31,348,375,488 28,630,710,679 

Provision for doubtful debts 25,165,304,279 4,008,896,485

Others 33,738,148,256 10,425,007,009

TOTAL 457,655,985,667 251,621,683,987 

25. PRODUCTION AND OPERATING COSTS
VND

Current year Previous year
Raw materials cost 5,038,641,779,226 743,206,672,051

Labor costs 653,359,328,427 329,847,223,810

External services 529,236,999,417 518,128,575,867

Cost of merchandise goods 149,280,063,577 309,794,184,108 

Depreciation and amortization 292,150,801,462 76,937,589,412 

Others 419,591,567,302 361,220,270,967

TOTAL 7,082,260,539,411 2,339,134,516,215 
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26. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
VND

Current year Previous year

Other income 21,707,536,880 38,601,764,837

Compensation income 3,317,795,944 285,158,060 

Reversal of land lease fee 3,317,339,376 -

Refund of self defense 2,659,820,264 -

Gains on disposal of fixed assets 722,972,893 394,835,303 

Reversal tax on changing of the using purpose of land - 34,594,000,000

Others 11,689,608,403 3,327,771,474 

Other expenses (23,316,703,491) (14,317,340,560)

Non deductible value added tax (7,931,281,173) -

Tax penalty (4,696,507,709) -

Penalty for business contract (3,919,576,998) (3,037,862,115)

Expenses from the rental fee not used in normal business activities (2,917,835,592) (8,318,467,544)

Tax payable in previous years (2,359,260,000) - 

Others (1,492,242,019) (2,961,010,901)

OTHER (LOSS) PROFIT (1,609,166,611) 24,284,424,277

27. CORPORATE INCOME TAX
 

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries have the obligation to pay corporate income tax (“CIT”) 
at the rate of 20% of taxable profits, except for the taxable profits from ice-cream and yogurt of Phu Dong II 
project according to the Investment Certificate No. 41221000330 issued by the DPI of Ho Chi Minh City on 28 
December 2010, as amended, which is entitled to an exemption from CIT for two (2) years from 2016, and a 
50% reduction of the applicable CIT tax rate for four (4) years thereafter. 

The tax returns filed by the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to examination by the tax authorities. 
Because the application of tax laws and regulations to many types of transactions is susceptible to varying 
interpretations, amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could change at a later date upon 
final determination by the tax authorities.

27. CORPORATE INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

27.1 CIT expens
VND

Current year Previous year

Current CIT expense 51,463,771,719 327,210,557,812

Adjustment for under accrual of tax from prior years 11,555,590,884 1,046,103,626 

Deferred tax expense (income) 57,513,816,421 (5,734,250,396)

TOTAL 120,533,179,024 322,522,411,042 

Reconciliation between the CIT expense and accounting profit multiplied by CIT rate is presented below:
VND

Current year Previous year

Accounting profit before tax 560,638,609,875 1,505,904,715,686 

At CIT rate of 20% 112,127,721,975 301,180,943,137 

Adjustments:

Non-deductible expenses 15,789,793,087 36,904,440,244

Amortization of goodwill 14,444,998,776 253,022,382 

Depreciation of revalued tangible fixed assets and 
amortization of revalued intangible assets

4,791,765,395 1,022,347,654 

Gain from disposal of a subsidiary (792,127,329) -

Shares of profit of joint venture and associates (29,644,750,976) (25,932,503,685) 

Income taxed in prior year (4,639,617,196) - 

Others 3,167,564,266 11,948,012,755

CIT expense during the year 115,245,347,998 325,376,262,487 

Adjustment for under accrual of tax from prior years 11,555,590,884 1,046,103,626

Tax exempted (15,261,058,053) (3,899,955,071)

Unrecognised deferred tax of tax losses carried forward 18,950,131,322  - 

Utilization of tax losses carried forward (9,956,833,127) -

CIT expense 120,533,179,024 322,522,411,042 

27.2 Current tax 

The current CIT payable is based on taxable profit for the current year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 
reported in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are 
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or deductible. The 
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.
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27. CORPORATE INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

27.3 Deferred tax 

The following is deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities recognized by the Group, and the movements 
thereon, during the current and previous years:

VND

Consolidated balance sheet Consolidated income statement

Ending 
balance

Beginning balance 
(As restated  -   

Note 30)

Current year Previous year 
(As restated  -  

Note 30)
Accrued expense 21,992,774,494 26,900,613,034 (4,907,838,540) 719,223,280 

Severance allowance 5,528,297,447 4,561,852,378 966,445,069 2,636,757,436 

Provision for  
short-term loan receivables

1,600,000,000 1,600,000,000 - - 

Unrealized profits 1,997,131,754 - 1,527,771,280 - 

Depreciation 303,031,070 487,241,683 (184,210,613) (59,410,228)

Provision for obsolete 
inventories

48,341,847 1,738,825,779 (1,690,483,932) 1,638,853,920 

Unrealized gains on foreign 
exchange differences

(176,375,411) (3,158,752) (173,216,659) 10,198,499 

Provision for investment 
diminution at subsidiary level

(1,208,946,282) - (1,208,946,282) -

Provision for doubtful debts (12,340,931,150) - (12,340,931,150) -

Gain from acquisition of a 
subsidiary

(48,980,527,137) - (48,980,527,137) -

Gain from revalued assets 
arising from business 
combination

(206,388,043,887) (215,866,165,430) 9,478,121,543 788,627,489 

TOTAL (237,625,247,255) (180,580,791,308) (57,513,816,421) 5,734,250,396 

In which:

Deferred tax assets 31,293,201,201 35,285,374,122 

Deferred tax liabilities (268,918,448,456) (215,866,165,430)

Details of movement of deferred tax assets during the year:
VND

Current year Previous year

Beginning balance 35,285,374,122 29,793,099,304 

Increase due to acquisition of a subsidiary 469,360,474 546,651,911

Deferred tax (expense) income (4,461,533,395) 4,945,622,907

Ending balance 31,293,201,201 35,285,374,122

28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties transactions include all transactions undertaken with other companies to which the Group is 
related, either through the investor/investee relationship or because they share a common investor and thus 
are considered to be a part of the same corporate company.
Significant transactions with related parties during the year were as follows: 

VND

Related party 
 

Relationship Transaction Current year Previous year

Vocarimex Subsidiary 
(former associate)

Purchase of raw materials and 
merchandises 

(896,158,563,355) (418,750,872,950)

Sale of merchandise 5,019,294,821 -

Processing fee (344,908,340) (10,492,286,608)

VDS Related party Collection of advance 1,145,439,769,000 566,990,569,980

Purchase of bonds 250,000,000,000 -

Securities transaction fee (7,563,834,107) (3,529,423,751)

 Advances for investment (100,000,000,000) (1,604,843,336,480)

Sale of merchandises 4,181,800 -

GHC Associate Sale of merchandise and finished goods 31,949,475,294 -

Borrowing merchandises (8,528,663,550) -

Rendering of services 2,068,977,848 -

Purchase of oil processing service (1,182,975,168) (2,560,831,264)

Purchase of raw materials and 
merchandise 

- (50,896,235,501)

VPK Subsidiary Purchase of oil packing (1,544,165,731) (374,427,860)

Kido Land
Corporation
(“KDL”)

Related
 party

Office rental income 1,136,363,636 2,560,606,060

Service fee 195,692,866 -

Nakydaco

Related party Sale of raw materials and merchandises 448,812,730,240 -

Dividends received 1,274,636,000 -

Purchase of merchandises (1,009,400,000) -

LG Vina
Associates Dividends received 24,489,366,520 -

Capital contribution 7,200,000,000 -

Calofic Associates Purchase of merchandises (893,568,000) -
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28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Amounts due from and due to related parties at the balance sheet date were as follows:

VND

Related party Relationship Transaction Ending balance 
Beginning 

balance

Short-term investments

VDS Related party Bond investment 250,000,000,000 -

Short-term trade receivables 

Nakydaco Related party Sale of raw materials and 
merchandises

58,000,826,752 -

GHC
Associate 

Sale of merchandises, 
materials, and rendering 
of services

5,361,006,084    560,020

Vocarimex
Subsidiary 
(formerassociate) 

Sale of materials
- 
 3,423,419 

63,361,832,836 3,983,439

Other short-term receivables

VDS Related party Advances for investment 176,638,400,000 1,222,639,391,000

Bond interests 479,166,666 -

177,117,566,666 1,222,639,391,000

Short-term trade payables

GHC
Associate Purchase of raw materials 

and processing fee 
(262,394,770) (1,757,132)

Vocarimex
Subsidiary 
(former associate)

Purchase of raw materials - (190,540,650,040)

VPK Subsidiary Purchase of packaging - (411,870,646)

KDL Related party Office rental
- (19,800,000) 

(262,394,770) (190,974,077,818)

Other short-term payables

GHC Associate Borrowing tools and 
supplies

(1,975,365,000) -

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors, management and the Board of Supervision during the 
year was as follows:

VND

Current year Previous year

Salary and benefit in kinds 59,915,490,738 51,905,590,858

29. COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitment

The Group leases land, offices and warehouses under operating lease arrangements. The minimum lease 
commitment as at the balance sheet date under the operating lease agreements is as follows:

VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

Within 1 year 75,396,161,334 91,479,199,984

From 1 to 5 years 208,619,322,192 181,063,246,696

More than 5 years 64,762,292,860 82,289,121,475

TOTAL 348,777,776,386 354,831,568,155

Capital contribution obligation

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding capital contribution obligation to subsidiaries and 
investment in another entity amounting to VND 227,500,000,000.

30. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR’S CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The comparative information related to the fair values assessment of the identifiable assets and liabilities of 
Tuong An at the acquisition date has been restated as disclosed in Note 4.2. In addition, certain figures in the 
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016 have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s 
presentation. The impacts of those restatements and reclassifications on each of the affected accounts in the 
accompanying corresponding consolidated financial statements are presented as follows: 

VND

 As previously reported  Restatement As restated 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2016

Tangible fixed assets 786,125,639,533 36,771,150,956 822,896,790,489 

Cost 1,385,808,777,176 38,811,955,671 1,424,620,732,847 

Accumulated depreciation (599,683,137,643) (2,040,804,715) (601,723,942,358)

Intangible assets 407,191,682,874 1,040,518,871,479 1,447,710,554,353 

Cost 457,079,992,725 1,044,462,008,922 1,501,542,001,647 

Accumulated amortization (49,888,309,851) (3,943,137,443) (53,831,447,294)

Goodwill 709,156,591,630 (558,608,274,408) 150,548,317,222 

Cost 717,763,208,648 (563,302,461,588) 154,460,747,060 

Accumulated amortization (8,606,617,018) 4,694,187,180 (3,912,429,838)

Deferred tax liabilities - 215,866,165,430 215,866,165,430 

Undistributed earnings 1,908,706,588,263 1,317,232,645 1,910,023,820,908 

Non-controlling interest 271,077,317,170 301,498,349,952 572,575,667,122 
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30. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR’S CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

VND

 As previously reported  Restatement As restated 

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Cost of goods sold and services rendered (1,364,532,605,025) (2,032,864,520) (1,366,565,469,545)

Selling expenses (717,930,249,544) (3,017,113,139) (720,947,362,683)

General and administration expenses (255,381,906,668) 3,760,222,681 (251,621,683,987)

Profit before corporate income tax 1,507,194,470,664 (1,289,754,978) 1,505,904,715,686 

Deferred tax income 4,945,622,907 788,627,489 5,734,250,396 

Profit after corporate income tax 1,183,883,432,133 (501,127,489) 1,183,382,304,644

Basic earnings per share 5,714 (91) 5,623 

Diluted earnings per share 5,714 (91) 5,623 

31.  SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The Group’s principal activities are to process agricultural products, foods and cooking oil which include 
purified drinks and dairy products. The Group views these activities as a business segment. However, the Group 
manages its geographical segments based on the location of the Group’s assets. Sales to external customers 
disclosed in geographical segments are based on the geographical location of its customers. 

The Group’s geographically segments comprise South and North of Vietnam. The following tables present 
revenue, profit and certain asset information regarding the Group’s geographical segments:

31.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

VND

South segment North segment Total

Current year

Segment revenue

Sales to external customers 5,118,467,599,200 1,999,630,138,621 7,118,097,737,821

Sales deductions (79,868,118,931) (21,904,382,298) (101,772,501,229)

Inter-segment sales 1,636,370,141,577 201,996,000 1,636,572,137,577

6,674,969,621,846 1,977,927,752,323 8,652,897,374,169

Reconciliation:

Elimination of inter-segment sales (1,636,572,137,577)

Revenue for the year 7,016,325,236,592

Segment results 583,949,923,620 66,309,145,392 650,259,069,012

Reconciliation:

Interest income 139,881,165,264

Interest expense (157,276,630,519)

Amortization of goodwill (72,224,993,882)

Profit before tax 560,638,609,875

Other segment information

Depreciation and amortization 266,216,098,882 25,934,702,580 292,150,801,462

(Reversal of) provision for doubtful receivables (465,827,022) 25,631,131,301 25,165,304,279

Reversal of provision for obsolete inventories (5,622,591,945) (834,082,348) (6,456,674,293)

Reversal of provision for investments diminution (444,313,950) - (444,313,950)

Ending balance

Segment assets 12,892,464,655,456 838,129,597,218 13,730,594,252,674

Reconciliation:

Elimination of inter-segment receivables (670,556,087,710)

Unallocated assets (1,752,862,958,724)

Total assets 11,307,175,206,240

Segment liabilities 3,833,242,031,221 327,108,785,735 4,160,350,816,956

Reconciliation:

Elimination of inter-segment payables (670,556,087,710)

Total liabilities 3,489,794,729,246
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31.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following tables present revenue, profit and certain asset information regarding the Group’s business 
segments: (continued)

VND

South segment North segment Total

Previous year

Segment revenue

Sales to external customers 1,951,880,777,166 320,535,339,710 2,272,416,116,876

Sales deductions (21,029,870,888) (12,610,813,489) (33,640,684,377)

Inter-segment sales 303,446,150,897 67,272,727 303,513,423,624

2,234,297,057,175 307,991,798,948 2,542,288,856,123

Reconciliation:

Elimination of inter-segment sales (303,513,423,624)

Revenue for the year 2,238,775,432,499

Segment results 1,529,285,713,256 (87,893,643,754) 1,441,392,069,502

Reconciliation:

Interest income 104,419,054,812

Interest expense (38,641,296,719)

Amortization of goodwill (1,265,111,909)

Profit before tax 1,505,904,715,686

Other segment information

Depreciation and amortization 76,598,639,985 338,949,427 76,937,589,412

Reversal of provision for doubtful receivables (11,115,463,447) (155,593,869) (11,271,057,316)

Provision for obsolete inventories 6,415,885,155 - 6,415,885,155 

Provision for investments diminution 177,411,120 - 177,411,120 

Ending balance

Segment assets 8,975,481,112,018 10,596,451,699 8,986,077,563,717

Reconciliation:

Elimination of inter-segment receivables (327,532,217,342)

Unallocated assets 709,156,591,630 

Total assets 9,367,701,938,005

Segment liabilities 2,859,070,679,339 327,678,405,888 3,186,749,085,227

Reconciliation:

Elimination of inter-segment payables (327,532,217,342)

Total liabilities 2,859,216,867,885

32. OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Ending balance Beginning balance

Foreign currencies:

-   United States dollar (USD) 8,962,232 68,249

-   Chinese Yuan Renminbi (CNY) 13,055 23,200

-   Euro (EUR) 1,462 2,710

Bad debts written off (VND) 11,029,828,811 11,029,828,811

33. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There is no matter or circumstance  that has arisen since the consolidated balance date that requires adjustment 
or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Tran Minh Nguyet Nguyen Thi Oanh Tran Le Nguyen

Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

28 March 2018
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